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Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of LG Electronics India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LG Electronics India Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income
(comprising profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 32 to the accompanying financial statements, where it is stated that the
Company had entered into a Revised License Agreement dated July 27, 2017 with its parent Company, i.e.,
LG Electronics Inc., Republic of Korea, for the use of technology and brand name. In accordance with the
aforesaid agreement, the Company is liable to pay royalty to LG Electronics Inc., Republic of Korea. Based
on the original agreement, royalty amounting to Rs. 4,032 Million has been accrued during the year ended
March 31, 2024, and remaining portion of royalty based on the aforesaid Revised License Agreement
amounting to Rs. 67,437 Million pertaining to the period from April 01, 2016 to March 31, 2024 is
contingent upon conclusion of the Advance Pricing Agreement with the Government of India. Consequently,

the Company has not accrued the remaining portion and the obligation has been disclosed as a contingent
liability.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF Cyber City, Gurugram - 122 002
T: +91 (124) 4620000, F: +91 (124) 4620620

Registered office and Head office” 11-A, Vishnu Digamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan, Gate No 2, New Delhi - 110002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Watarhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no LLPIN AAC-5001)
vaith effect from July 25, 2014, Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAL registration number 15 012754N/NS0001E6 (ICAI registration
number before conversion was 012754N)



Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of LG Electronics India Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 of 5

Other Information

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

6.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

>
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except that the backup of books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India during the year and for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 31(A) and Note 32 to the financial statements;

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024 under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts. The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 42 (vii)(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 42 (vii)(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The dividend paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, the audit trail was
not enabled for the accounting software used throughout the year. Accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the audit trail was tampered with, does not arise.
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13. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number:012754N/N500016

e

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

UDIN: 24078571BKFWVG5614
Place: Gurugram
Date: August 31, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.  We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of LG
Electronics India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

s

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finaneial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number:012754N/N500016

J,.«;_{Pf"“

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

i

UDIN: 24078571BKFWVG5614
Place: Gurugram
Date: August 31, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the
books of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

1:

il.

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation, of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Property, plant and equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the

Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on such verification were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is

the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in
Note 3(a) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, plant and equipment (including Right

of use assets) and Intangible assets. Consequently, as stated in Note 42(x) to the financial
statements, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the
valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or
more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, plant and equipment
(including Right of use assets) or Intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us and as stated in Note 42(i) to the

financial statements, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the
Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question
of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the
financial statements does not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted

at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory
lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or
more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.

5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or
statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not
arise. Also, refer Note 42(ii) to the financial statements.
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iii. (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to few employees. The aggregate amount during

the year and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans are as
per the table given below:

Particulars Loans (Amount in Rs. Million)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year 56
- Loans to employees

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in 73
respect of the above case

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(t)

(Also, refer Note 6 to the financial statements)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. The Company has not
made any investments, granted any secured/unsecured loans or advances in nature of loans
to companies, firms, LLPs or any other parties or stood guarantee or provided any security to
companies, firms, LLPs or any other parties.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were
granted are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the
parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated. These loans given to employees are
interest free and hence the question of payment of interest does not arise.

In respect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans which have fallen due during the year and were renewed/extended.
Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans. Also
refer Note 6 to the financial statements.

There were no loans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year,
including to promoters/related parties other than loans granted to few employees. In respect
of the loans granted during the year to employees, the schedule of repayment of principal has
been stipulated and the same were not repayable on demand.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. ’

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

vi.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its certain products
and services. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

vii. (a) Inour opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in

respect of goods and services tax, provident fund and income tax, though there has been a
slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
employees’ state insurance, duty of customs and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities. Also, refer Note 31 A(iv) to the financial statements
regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.
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(b) The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Aniount Amount Amount | Period to
Name of the | Nature of Ra.in deposited | not paid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues nillio 5 (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates
Commissioner of
The Customs Customs - Customs Indira Gandhi
Act, 1962 Duty e = 0% | LEU5-04 International Airport,
New Delhi
Commissioner of
The Customs Customs Customs Indira Gandhi
Act, 1962 Duty el B .61 || SHHIR02 International Airport,
New Delhi
The Customs Customs !
A, 1968 Dty 0.80 - ailie 2006-07 High Court of Bombay
Custom Excise & Service
h t .
;[\‘cte (E(;lﬁsooms g‘:lﬁ,oms 3.56 - 3.56 | 1998-99 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
A S . Delhi Bench
Commissioner of
The Customs Customs Customs Indira Gandhi
Act, 1962 Duty 6.99 G20 6.79 | 2018-19 International Airport,
New Delhi
Custom Excise & Service
'lef (f(;lg‘;oms gﬁtoms 9.46 0.65 8.81 | 2018-19 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
L y Delhi Bench
Custom Excise & Service
I\Ete ?:g;oms g‘;ﬁtoms 11.86 0.30 11.56 | 2006-07 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
! Y Delhi Bench
Custom Excise & Service
};{'f ?:g;oms g‘lﬁt?ms 69.76 7.63 62.13 | 2020-21 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
: y Mumbai Bench
The Jammu
and Kashmir Goods and Joint C =l
Goods and Services 0.48 0.02 0.46 | 2017-18 .(Aom = i):)rlmlssmner
Services Tax Tax PReL
Act, 2017
The Jharkhand | ..
Goods and é:)giis and LdB 668 8 Joint Commissioner
Services Tax Tax Gesl % : el Bt (Appeals)
Act, 2017 )
Th k
Go?)é(: :rl\?lta ! g:g(ijsea;nd 18408 ) siuon | seime Joint Commissioner
Services Tax Tax ; i 4 9 (Appeals)
Act, 2017 :
The Karnataka
Goods and : i
Goods and : , : Joint Commissioner
S ol Tk "?‘i?ces 126.47 - 126.47 | 2017-18 (Appeals)
Act, 2017 ’
The Karnataka o —
géﬁg:c;;n'lc'lax Services 0.42 - 0.42 | 2017-18 ‘(l;imt C;)r;]mlssmner
Tax PPES
Act, 2017
The Tamil Gooisand
Nadu Goods i 113.03 10.28 102.75 | 2018-19 Joint Commissioner
and Services Tax (Appeals)
Act, 2017 :

e rtere

Charten S
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T Amount | Amount | Periodto
Name of the | Nature of (Rs. in deposited | notpaid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues illion) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates
The Tamil Goods and
Nadu Goods 5 - = Joint Commissioner
and BEevices %z?qces 132.79 11.85 120.94 | 2017-18 (Appeals)
Act, 2017
The Tamil
Goods and ; oo
Nadu Goods : Joint Commissioner
and Begviosd ?&mces 27.52 2.50 25.02 | 2017-18 (Appeals)
ax
Act, 2017
The Tamil
Goods and : -
Nadu Goods : - Joint Commissioner
Sl Batvisas '?‘iiwces 13.55 1.23 12.32 | 2022-23 (Appeals)
Act, 2017 )
The Tamil
: hi Goods and : thes
Nadu Gupds G 11.46 1.04 10.42 | 2022-23 Joint Commissioner
and Services T (Appeals)
ax
Act, 2017
The Tamil Geadnani
Nadu Gopds: b olaen 2.84 b 2.58 | 2022-23 Joint Co.mmlssmner
and Services T (Appeals)
ax
Act, 2017
The Tamil Goods and
Nadu Gop s Services 0.12 0.01 0.11 | 2019-20 Joint Commissioner
and Services (Appeals)
Tax
Act, 2017
The Tamil Goods and
Nadu Goods : , Joint Commissioner
il BesrEEs %er.vlces 109.41 9.95 99.46 | 2019-20 (Appeals)
ax
Act, 2017
The Telangana 5
Goods and Gou(:is: and Multiple Joint Commissioner
: Services 0.40 0.04 0.36
Services Tax T years (Appeals)
ax
Act, 2017
The Union
Territory Goods and : -
Goods and Services 2.6 0.11 2,25 | 2017-18 '(]Kmtegf:;lmlb&mner
Services Tax Tax PIaa
Act, 2017
The Uttar Goods and
Pradesh F}o?ds Sarices 1,410.10 ) 1,410.19 Multiple Joint Commissioner
and Services Tax years (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2017 &
The Uttar Goods and i issi
Pradesh Goods %*rviées i ) S Joint Commissioner
and Services :I‘ax' 407 4.07 7 (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2017 }
The Uttar =
Pradesh Goods (Sjgr?gcseznd i = yioo | aileip Joint Commissioner
and Services Tax 27 27 | 2 (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2017
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ABIOURE Amount | Amount | Period to
Name of the | Nature of i deposited | notpaid | which Forum where dispute
(Rs. in : : E AP
Statute Dues silHon) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates
The
Uttarakhand Goods and ; e
Goods and Services 0.80 0.07 0.73 | 2017-18 ‘gg;“teg?s |;1m1531oner
Services Tax Tax p
Act, 2017
The West
Goods and ; o
Bengal Goods o e o Joint Commissioner
arid Garviond %:;wnes 0.94 0.09 0.85 | 2023-24 (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2017
The Income Income ’ Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1061 | Tax 2/017:36 150.00 | 1,867.36 | 2013-14 | 1yihunal Delhi
The Income Income g Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax Leas ba:04 1,686.15 | 2014-15 Tribunal, Delhi
Income I Income Tax Appell:
%ﬁ Aréfcoi;'él ,;:come 1,624.09 100.00 1,524.09 | 2011-12 Tribunal Dell'Fipe e
The Income Income éok . 6 High C f Delhi
Pax Act, 1661 Tax 1,606.04 - 1,606.04 | 2015-1 igh Court of Delhi
The Income Income ; Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax 1,573.38 100.00 |  1,473.38 | 2012-13 Tribunal, Delhi
Th 3 High Court of Judicat
TavAct 1061 | Tax | b63373| 60423 | 02050 | 2oog-to | o Ry gt AR
The Income Income ; . : Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 1,433.83 i 1,392.42. | 2016-17 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income ; - Asssadine O
Thoehot, 196 Tax 1,033.74 - 1,033.74 | 2019-20 sessing Officer
The Income Income Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 1,350.33 184.05 116628 | 2010-11 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income 2 : Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 1,335-70 ) 1,335:70 | 2004-05 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income . Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 1,150.98 i 1,150.98 | 2005-06 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 77538 31051 464.87 | 2008-09 at Allahabad
The Income Income High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax 696.72 380.30 316.42 | 2006-07 | . Anotobad
The Income Income High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax bog.ak 363.19 305499 | 2007-08 at Allahabad
The Income Income 3 j : High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 624,84 eokls 388.72. | 2004-05 at Allahabad
The Income Income . . High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 623.40 254-50 368.90 | 2005-06 at Allahabad
The Income Income Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 490.56 9 490.75 | 2017-18 Tribunal, Delhi
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AotinE Amount | Amount | Period to
Name of the | Nature of (Rs. in deposited | notpaid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues il :on) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) | million) | relates
The Income Income . Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax S20. L8 81551 | 2006-07 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income . ) 2014-15to | Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 27a44 274-44 | 5018-19 Tax (Appeals)
The Income Income . Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 Tax £25:90 4518 180,72 | 2009-10 Tax (Appeals)
The Income Income " & High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 172qd 126.33 40.10 | 2002-03 at Allahabad
The Income Income : i High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 143=0 135.41 W49 1| 2003-04 at Allahabad
The Income Income 2011-12 to | Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 14649 ) 16:1g 2013-14 Tax (Appeals)
The Income Income ‘ e High Court of Judicature
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 10308 1P4E0 = | 0008 at Allahabad
The Income Income ” Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 8373 . 83.73 | 2005-06 Tax (Appeals)
The Income Income Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 71.46 B 7146 | 2007-08 Tax (Appeals)
The Income Income Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax bo:52 ) 60.52 | ‘900809 |y (Appeals)
The Income Income Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 54-47 54-47 - | 2007-08 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 4838 ) 48.18 | 2006-07 Tax (Appeals)
The Income Income g Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax 40.34 8.07 3227 | 2005-06 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income % Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 Tax L7 i 17.25, | ‘2004-05 Tribunal, Delhi
The Income Income Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax Aar ) 0.57 | 2000-0L | 1y« (Appeals)
The Legal s
Legal ) e Patiala House Court
Metrology Act, Metrology 0.15 0.15 | 2015-16 Complex
2009
The Provident August
Fund and ;
Miscellaneous Provident 36.55 26.55 20,12 3 High Court of Bombay
e Fund - March
Provisions Act, 2015
1952
5t ; April 2006 A 7
The Finance Service : ; i - High Court of Judicature
Act, 1994 Tax 1,042.60 - 1,042.60 ;glctt)nber at-Allahabad
: : June 2010 -
The Finance Service " = Commissioner of CGST
Act, 1994 Tax 196.96 7.38 189.58 ;gilgrch (Appeals), Pune
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September s ]
The Finance | Service : 3| 5181|2998 | TaxAppelate Tribunal,
Act, 1994 Tax 57.74 5-93 51 March PP )
= Allahabad Bench
2008
; ; April 2011 | Custom Excise & Service
gf I;‘mance ,SI’.ZI‘.{WCE 120.24 0.06 120.18 | - March Tax Appellate Tribunal,
»1994 : 2015 Mumbai Bench
e Hiiniion Baicking f\p!‘ll 2012 | cystom Excise &_Service
Rt sl Tax 117.88 3.52 14.36 | pocember | 13X Appellate Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench
2015
August : :
oY : Custom Excise & Service
3385 1:1!1311(.& ,?,i‘;“ce 112.26 3.70 108.56 ‘;/lo?ril; Tax Appellate Tribunal,
11994 ’ i Allahabad Bench
2006
: o July 2011 - | Custom Excise & Service
;I\‘ltlte l:'mance ?zl;ww 92.06 3.45 88.61 | March Tax Appellate Tribunal,
, 1994 : 2016 Allahabad Bench
The Finance T January Custom Excise & Service
APt 1964 Tax 73.28 2.71 70.57 | 2016 - Tax App_ellate Tribunal,
! ? June 2017 | Mumbai Bench
April 2012
= ; geptetnber Custom Excise & Service
zlgte fl"mance %;Tce 59.21 - 59.21 | 2015and Tax Appellate Tribunal,
304 April 2011 - | Allahabad Bench
January
2013
i ; July 2015 | Custom Excise & Service
ilzf I:mance ,?.i?we 58.26 2.19 56.07 | - March Tax Appellate Tribunal,
» 1994 = 2016 Mumbai Bench
April 2015
The Finance Service - Commissioner of CGST
Act, 1994 Tax 48 1.85 47.06 December | (Appeals), Pune
2015
T Hititice . i\prﬂ 2012 Custom Excise & Service
: 17.55 - 17.55 . Tax Appellate Tribunal,
Act, 1994 Tax 2D§:§mber Allahabad Bench
. Py . April 2016 | Custom Excise & Service
'[Al:f Il?m(mm, ,?.:;,"m 15.84 1.44 14.40 | —June Tax Appellate Tribunal,
» 1994 2017 Allahabad Bench
The Finance Sdian .Iuly 2012 1 custom Excise & Service
i 10.13 5.06 5.07 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
Act, 1994 Tax ng;mber Allahabad Bench
R e October Custom Excise & Service
Rlelf I;m.mce ?.3;““ 7.30 - 7.30 | 2015 — Tax Appellate Tribunal,
, 1994 July 2016 | Allahabad Bench
. - —_ April 2010 o ;
T'he Finance Service ; et Custom Excise & Service
Act, 1994 Tax 614 oA 5-83 ;gll‘:rth Tax Appellate Tribunal
The Finance Haiiion April 2015 | Custom Excise & Service
kel 3 3 Tax 5.88 - 5.88 | - June Tax Appellate Tribunal,
, 1994 a 2015 Mumbai Bench
T—— — August
'I;l: I;mam.t %;Tu 3.24 - 3.24 | 2016 - Commissioner (Appeals)
Acl, 1994 : June 2017
EEa— oo April 2007 | Custom Excise & Service
'ng };m‘m“ .SI'.ZI:!“E 2,25 0.09 2.16 | - April Tax Appellate Tribunal,
ALk 1994 = 2013 Mumbai Bench
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Assonst Amount | Amount | Period to
Name of the | Nature of (Re-1a deposited | notpaid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues ']]i.on) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates

The Andhra

Pradesh Value | VAT/ Sales :

AR Ta Act. | 4 0.43 0.39 0.04 | 2015-16 Sales Tax Tribunal

2005

The Bihar

Finance Act, :;‘?{T/ Sales 5.43 5.43 - | 2002-03 Commissioner (Appeals)

1961 i

The Bihar

Value Added VAT Sales 12.18 4.26 7.92 | 2012-13 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax

Tax Act, 2005

The Bihar

Value Added :;AT/ Sales 11.33 2.539 8.01 | 2008-09 The High Court of

Tax Act, 2005 » Judicature at Patna

The Bihar

Value Added YA'T/ Sales 5.57 5.57 - | 2011-12 Supreme Court of India
tax

Tax Act, 2005

The Bihar :

Value Added Z::T/ Sales 2.45 0.91 1.54 | 2017-18 Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2005 e

The Bihar

Value Added :;‘!:T/ Sales 1.05 1.05 - | 2007-08 Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2005

The Bihar i

Value Added ::: I/ Sales 0.58 0.10 0.48 | 2013-14 Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2005 ?

The Bihar

Value Added X::T/ Sales 0.24 - 0.24 | 2015-16 Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2005 i

The

Chhattisgarh VAT/ Sales 2 T

Valie Added i 0.12 0.12 - | 2016-17 Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2005

The Delhi i

Value Added ALy Salee 25.72 - 25.72 | 2017-18 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax

Tax Act, 2004

The Delhi ; April 2015

Value Added :’;E;T/ Sales 0.25 0.04 0.21 | - Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2004 December

2015

The Gujarat .

Value Added &T/ Sales 4.78 3.29 1.49 | 2006-07 Sales tax Tribunal

Tax Act, 2003

The Gujarat

Value Added :;A,T/ Sales 0.38 0.23 0.15 | 2012-13 Sales Tax Tribunal

Tax Act, 2003 a |-

The Jharkhand s

Value Added :/;:T/ Sales 8.18 1.64 6.54 | 2010-11 Commissioner (Appeals)

Tax Act, 2005

The Jharkhand :

Value Added VAT/ Sales 2.25 - 2.25 | 2009-10 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax

Tax Act, 2005

The Jharkhand S b

Value Added VAT/ Sales 1.74 - 1.74 | 2015-16 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax

Tax Act, 2005
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Rt Amount Amount | Period to
Name of the | Nature of (Rs. i deposited | not paid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues 'l]:on) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates
The Jharkhand VAT/ Sales
Value Added Y & 0.49 0.49 - | 2013-14 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2005 i
The Karnataka .
Value Added VAT/ Sales 1.35 1.35 - | 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax
Tax Act, 2003
The Karnataka e
Value Added ;J,A_l/ Sales 0.54 0.54 - | 2011-12 Commissioner (Appeals)
ax
Tax Act, 2003
The Karnataka :
Value Added WfT/ Balen 0.28 0.28 - | 2013-14 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax
Tax Act, 2003
The Karnataka .
Value Added :;ﬁT/ Sales 0.11 0.11 - | 2012-13 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2003 i
The Kerala
Value Added Xﬁ” Sales 62.89 - 62.89 | 2009-10 High Court of Kerala
Tax Act, 2003 £
The Kerala =
Value Added ZﬁTl Sales 55.04 4.03 51.01 | 2015-16 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2003 o
The Kerala
Value Added VA_T/ Sales 44.99 1.80 43.19 | 2010-11 High Court of Kerala
tax
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala
Value Added :g‘tT/ Sales 25.31 - 25.31 | 2016-17 High Court of Kerala
Tax Act, 2003 )
The Kerala
Value Added X‘:T/ Sales 25.26 5.91 19.35 | 2006-07 High Court of Kerala
Tax Act, 2003 i
The Kerala
Value Added Xa?gT/ Sales 5.04 4.10 0.94 | 2011-12 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala
Value Added Ya?cT/ Sales 4.87 0.79 4.08 | 2013-14 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala
Value Added 2;1:11/ Sales 3.88 1.25 2.63 | 2012-13 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala
Value Added :;’:T/ Sales 3.:79 - 3.73 | 2017-18 High Court of Kerala
Tax Act, 2003 ’
The Kerala T
Value Added VAT/ Sales 1.67 1.07 0.60 | 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala
Value Added :;‘I:T/ Sales 1.63 0.54 1.09 | 2008-09 Sales Tax Tribunal
Tax Act, 2003 i
The Kerala e T
Value Added :/aﬁ” Shles 0.90 - 0.90 | 2008-09 High Court of Kerala
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala ; :
Value Added YAU Sales 0.64 0.08 0.56 | 2011-12 Sales Tax Tribunal
; tax
Tax Act, 2003
The Kerala
Value Added VAT/ Sales 0.19 0.03 0.16 | 2012-13 Sales Tax Tribunal
Tax Act, 2003 tax
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Name of the | Nature of (Rs.in deposited | notpaid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues milh i) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates
The Madhya
Pradesh :
Vanijiyik Kar VAL Bules 4.51 2.51 2.00 | 2001-02 High Courtof Madhya
e tax Pradesh
Adhiniyam,
1994
The Madhya
Pradesh o ;
Vanijisik Kar VAT/ Sales 1.23 1.23 - | 1998-99 High Court of Madhya
24 tax Pradesh
Adhiniyam,
1994
The
Maharashtra VAT/ Sales 5.45 - 5.45 | 2006-07 .
Value Added e High Court of Bombay
Tax Act, 2002
The Orissa
Entry Tax Act, | VAT/ Sales 7.03 5.50 1.53 | 2003-04 High Court of Orissa
1999 tax N
The Orissa
Entry Tax Act, Xﬁ’[‘/ Sales 1.89 0.60 1.29 | 2002-03 Sales Tax Tribunal
1?}99 :
The Orissa !
Value Added :{:’:T/ Sales 2.49 0.33 2.16 | 2008-09 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2004 g
The Orissa ot
Value Added :faiT/ Sales 1.26 0.15 1.11 | 2007-08 Sales Tax Tribunal
Tax Act, 2004
The Punjab _—
Value Added WAL/ Sles 0.02 - 0.02 | 2017-18 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax
Tax Act, 2005
The Rajasthan ]
Entry Tax Act, g‘f[‘/ Sales 20.67 - 20.67 | 2017-18 Commissioner (Appeals)
1999 i
April
The Rajasthan | VAT/ Sales 3.78 1.44 é 2008 - Sales Tax Tribunal
Entry Tax Act, | tax 34 | March
1999 2013
The Rajasthan .
Entry Tax Act, :';ﬁT/ Sales 3.26 3.26 - | 2011-12 Rajasthan High Court
1999 n
The Rajasthan —
Entry Tax Act, ::zl/ Sales 2.97 2.97 - | 2014-15 Sales Tax Tribunal
1999 e
The Rajasthan T
Entry Tax Act, X‘i I/ Sales 1.12 1.12 - | 2013-14 Sales Tax Tribunal
1999 :
The Rajasthan
Entry Tax Act, XﬁT/ Sales 0.38 0.38 - | 2012-13 Sales Tax Tribunal
1999 .
The Rajasthan .
Entry Tax Act, X:}(T/ Sales 0.25 0.23 0.02 | 2010-11 Sales Tax Tribunal
1999 ’
April
The Rajasthan | VAT/ Sales . = 2008 - Rajasthan High Court
Value Added tax 102,40 i 10246 | parch
Tax Act, 2003 2010
The Rajasthan e
Value Added VAT/ Sales 26.68 1.24 25.44 | 2010-11 Sales Tax Tribunal
tax
Tax Act, 2003
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Tax Act, 1994

ReoRent Amount Amount | Period to
Name of the | Nature of (Rs. in deposited | notpaid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues milli.on) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates
The Rajasthan April
Value Added :;‘?(T/ Sales 7.56 7.56 - | 2009 - Rajasthan High Court
Tax Act, 2003 g March
2013
The Rajasthan
Value Added :.{::T/ Sales 0.93 - 0.93 | 2015-16 Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax Act, 2003 i
The Tamil
Nadu Value VAT/ Sales 2.94 2.94 - | 2007-08 Sales Tax Tribunal
Added Tax Act, | tax
2006
The Tamil
Nadu Value VAT/ Sales 1.66 1.66 - | 2011-12 Sales Tax Tribunal
Added Tax Act, | tax
2006
The Telangana oy
Value Added :":\(” Sales 100.16 23.90 76.26 | 2012-13 to | High Court for the state
Tax Act, 2005 & 2013-14 of Telangana
The Utta'r VAT/ Sales 166.97 - 166.97 | 1997-98 High Court of Judicature
Pradesh Trade b : s
: tax at Allahabad
l'ax Act, 1948
The Uttar X
Pradesh Trade :;‘?{T/ Sales 1.93 - 1.93 | 2003-04 Sales Tax Tribunal
Tax Act, 1948
The Uttar :
April 2017
Pradesh Value | VAT/ Sales -
Adfled Tus Aot | fax 4.63 4.63 - :June Commissioner (Appeals)
2017
2008
The Uttar
gﬁ%{?},}.ﬁ'kﬁ g‘tr/ Bl 2.01 1.64 0.37 | 2010-11 Sales Tax Tribunal
2008
The Uttar
Pradesh Value | VAT/ Sales . s
Added Tax Act, | tax 0.85 0.85 - | 2008-09 Sales Tax Tribunal
2008
The Uttar
Pradesh Value | VAT/ Sales ;
Afldied Tk Ack, | i 0.38 0.31 0.07 | 2015-16 Sales Tax Tribunal
2008
The
Uttarakhand VAT/ Sales 0.16 0.16 - | 2013-14 Commissioner (Appeals)
Value Added tax
Tax Act, 2005
The West
Bengal Sales XﬁT/ Sales 98.78 15.00 83.78 | 2011-12 Sales Tax Tribunal
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Apveitns Amount | Amount | Periodto
Name of the | Nature of (Rs. in deposited | not paid | which Forum where dispute
Statute Dues ‘]}i.o i) (Rs. in (Rs.in | amount is pending
million) million) | relates

The West

Bengal Sales VAT/ Sales 10.69 - 10.69 | 2001-02 Sales Tax Tribunal

Tax Act, 1994 tax

The West Rl

Bengal Sales w‘fl/ Sales 7.94 0.79 7.15 | 2016-17 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax

Tax Act, 1994

The West

Bengal Sales Y‘A{r/ Bules 0.51 - 0.51 | 2009-10 Commissioner (Appeals)
tax

Tax Act, 1994

viii. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax

Act, 1961. Also, refer Note 42(viii) to the financial statements.

ix. (a) Asthe Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year,
the reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared

Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority. Also, refer Note 42(iii) to the financial statements.

(c)

(d)

The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by

us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not raised funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

®

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

X. (a)

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a)

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.
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Xil.

xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvil.

xviil.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section
143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us
by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the
reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial/housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated
whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

”05,
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xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date

will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. Also refer Note 41 to the financial
statements.

xx. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have

any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining
unspent under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to ongoing projects to a
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act.
(Also, refer Note 33 to the financial statements).

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

)
WW

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

UDIN: 24078571 BKFWVG5614
Place: Gurugram
Date: August 31, 2024




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(In Million)
As at As at
o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
g ? G
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 13,105 13,328
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3(b) 242 243
(c) Intangible assets 4(a) 83 99
(d) Intangible assets under development 4(b) 2 3
(e) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 a s
(i) Loans 6 55 48
(i) Other financial assets 7 1,141 1,193
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 26(b) 1,720 1,365
(g) Other non-current assets 8 2,052 2,001
Total non - current assets 18,400 18,280
Current assets
(a) Inventones 9 23,974 26,410
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 17,970 14,995
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 22,226 27,626
(iii) Loans ] 18 21
(iv) Other financial assets F 930 613
(c) Other current assets 8 1,466 1,936
66,584 71,601
Assets held for sale 8(a) - 40
| Total current assets 66,584 71,641
Total assets 84,984 89,921
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 1 1431 1,131
(b) Other equity 12 36,591 42431
Total equity 37,722 43,562
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilties
- Lease liabilities 17 2,847 2,495
(b) Provisions 13 B75 705
(c) Other non-current liabilities 14(a) 1673 1,160
Total non - current liabilities 5,395 4,360
Current liabllities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 17 853 690
(i) Trade payables 15
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 3,004 3,751
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 27,257 27,441
(i) Other financial liabilities 16 2,881 3,236
(b) Other current liabilities 14(a) 5,906 5,092
(c) Provisions 13 1,532 1,354
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 14(b) 344 435
Total current liabilities 41,867 41,999
Total liabilities 47,262 46,359
Total equity and liabilities 84,984 89,921

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our repart of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. : 012?53N500016

S ol

Anurag Khandelwal
Pariner
Membership No. : 078571

Place : Gurugram
Date . August 31, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of LG Electronics India Private Limited
—7

Managing Director
DIN. : 10041232

Atul Khanna
Vice President, Finance

e

sh Kumar Jhanwar
(_General Manager, Accounting

-

Place : Noida
Date : August 31, 2024

Director and Chief
Financial Officer
DIN.: 09481866

Manish Kumar Surolia
Company Secretary
Membership No : A44350




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(In Million)
Note Year ended Year ended
No March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
. 4 ¥

A. Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 18 213,520 198,646
Other income 19 2,051 2,440
Total income 215,571 201,086
Expenses
Cost of materials coansumed 20(a) 129,160 123,608
Purchases of stock-in-trade 20(b) 19,358 18,788
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 20(c) 784 (2,115)
Employee benefits expense 21 B,868 7,992
Finance costs 22 285 226
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 3,644 3,004
Other expenses 24 33,101 31,380
Total expenses 195,200 182,883
Profit before tax from continuing operations 20,371 18,203
Tax expense

- Current tax 26(a) 5,567 4,794

- Current tax expense relating to previous year 26(a) 40 14

- Deferred tax 26(b) (347) (85)
Total tax expense 5,260 4,723
Profit for the year from continuing operations 15,111 13,480
B. Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations before tax 35 - (42)
Tax expense of discontinued operations as - (11)
Loss after tax from discontinued operations (31)
Profit for the year 15,111 13,449
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligation 27 (30) (8)
Income tax relating to these items 28(b) 8 2
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of tax) (22) (6)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 15,089 13,443
Earnings per equity share from continuing operations attributable to
the equity holders of the Company
Basic earnings per share () 29 133.57 119.16
Diluted earnings per share (Z) 29 133.57 119.16
Earnings per equity share from discontinued operations attributable to
the equity holders of the Company
Basic earnings per share (¥) 29 - (0.27)
Diluted earnings per share (2) 29 - (0.27)
Earnings per equity share from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
Basic earnings per share (%) 29 133.57 11889
Diluted earnings per share () 29 133 57 118.89

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. : 012754N/N500016

Anurag Khandelwal
Pariner
Membership No. : 078571

Place : Gurugram
Date : August 31, 2024

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of LG Electronics India Private Limited

2

Dong Myu eo
Director and Chief
Financial Officer
DIN. : 09481866

W’?““‘/ '
Atul Khanna
Vice President, Finance

‘Qﬁ‘g du Jeon
Managing Director
DIN. : 10041232

esh Kumar Jhanwar
General Manager, Accounting

Place : Noida
Date : August 31, 2024

o

Manish Kumar Surolia
Company Secretary
Membership No : Ad4350
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LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{In Million)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
? ¥ 4 z
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax from continuing operations 20,371 18,203
Loss before tax from discontinued operations - (42)
Profit before income tax including discontinued operations 20,371 18,161
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,644 3,004
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) (8) (7)
Interest income on bank deposits (1,989) (2,202)
Interest on lease liabilities 269 225
Property, plant and equipment written-off 3 3
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables, other assets and
: (18) 48
other financials assets
Trade receivables written-off 14 19
Provision for warranty expenses 137 87
Unrealised (gain) / loss on foreign currency (Net) 61 (19)
2115 1,158
Operating profit before change in operating assets and liabilities 22,486 19,319
Changes in working capital:
Adjustment for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 2,468 (2,262)
Trade receivables (2,947) (1,207)
Other assets 368 (269)
Other financial assets (257) 420
Loans (4) 10
Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities.
Trade payables (913) 5,233
Provisions 189 196
Other liabilities 1,827 1,002
Other financial liabilities (356) 865
125) 3,988
Cash generated from operations 22,361 23,307
Net income tax (paid) / refunds (5,698) (4,425)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (A) 16,663 18,882
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(including Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets under (2,421) (6,171)
development)
Proceeds from government grant 208 197
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10 33
Interest income on bank deposits 1,989 2,202
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities (B) (214) (2,739)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payment of lease liabilities (654) (494)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (269) (225)
Interim dividend (20,929) (24,888)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (C) (21,852) (25,607)




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{In Million)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
z z ? L4
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (5,403) (9,464)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 27,626 37,094
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency 3 (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22,226 27,626
Non-cash investing activities
Acquisition of right of use assets 1,169 788
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprises:
(a) Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts 696 246
(ii) Exchange Earner's Foreign Currency (EEFC) Accounts 458 345
(b) Cash on hand 8 5
(c) Bank deposits with maturity of less than three months 21,064 27,030
22,226 27,626

Notes:

Corporate social responsibility.

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. : 012754N/N500016

oub"’Q
Anurag Khandelwal
Partner

Membership No. : 078571

Place : Gurugram
Date : August 31, 2024

(i) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in "Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows".
(i) Amount in bracket represent outflows, except for working capital changes
(i) Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities includes amount of # 265 million (March 31, 2023 * 188 million) spent towards

(iv) Balance with banks in current accounts and bank deposits with maturity of less than three months includes balance in separate CSR
unspent account amounting to ¥ 28 million and ¥ 543 million respectively (March 31, 2023 : # 56 million and ¥ 419 million respectively).

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of LG Electronics India Private Limited

Hongdu Yeon
Managing Director
DIN. © 10041232

\’\;\’“y
tul Khanna
Vice President, Finance

(_-Suresh Kumar Jhanwar

General Manager, Accounting

Place : Noida
Date : August 31, 2024

Dong Myung Sei
Director and Chief Financial Officer
DIN. : 09481866

Manish Kumar Surolia
Company Secretary
Membership No : A44350




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1

21
A)

B)

)

D)

2.2

Company Information

LG Electronics India Private Limited (the Company) having corporate identification number (CIN) U32107DL1987PTC220109 was incorporated on January 20, 1997
in India, having registered office at Delhi and is angaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Television (Flat panel, Signage, Projectors, Monitor TV etc ).
Air Conditioners, Refrigerators, Microwave Ovens, Washing Machines, Compressors, Vacuum Cleaners, Ceiling Fan ,Optical Disk Drive, Moniter, Audio and Digital
Video Display Systems, Water Purifiers, Air Purifiers, Personal Computer, Security Camera, Dishwasher and LED Lights

The Manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at Greater Noida in the State of Uttar Pradesh and in Ranjangaon near Pune in the State of Maharashira
The Company is closely held with 113,128,726 Shares held by LG Electronics Inc, South Korea and balance 6 shares held by LG Soft India Private Limited as
nominee

The financial statemants were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on August 31, 2024

Basis of preparation, Critical estimates and judgments, Material and other Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act),
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instrumaents) and,

1) Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Fair value = Fair value 1s the price that would be recewved lo sell an assel or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the
measurement dale

Functional currency
The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's functional currency All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have
been rounded off to the nearest ¥ Million as per the requirements of Schedule Il to the Act, unless otherwise stated Amount below rounding off norm are disclosed as

wan

New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which
amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective from April 01, 2023

1 Disclosure of accounting policies- amendments to Ind AS 1,
2 Disclosure of accounting estimatas- amendments to Ind AS B,
3 Deferred tax assets related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction- amendments lo Ind AS 12

The other amendmants to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in nature of clarffications

Critical estimates and judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates, assumptions and judgments, which have significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement

(a) Provisions and contingencies

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respact of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy

(b) Warranty
The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold These eslimates are established using historical information on the nature,
frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions or preduct failures

(c) Revenue from operations

The estimated refund liability and a right to recover the returnad gocds are recognised for the products expected 1o be returned at the time of sale These estimates
are established using histarical information in nature, frequency and actual return of product with management estimate of future return of products




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.3 Material Accounting Policies

A)

c)

The material accounling policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounling policies have been applied
consistently o all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity, and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described balow

Sales of products

Revenue from sale of finished goods, stock-in-trade, raw malerial, service compenents and spares i1s recognised when control of the goods is transferred o the
customers being when the products are delivered to the customer Delivery does not occur until the products have bean shipped to the spacified location, the risk of
loss (i e control) have been lransferred to the customer, and either the custamer has accepted the products in accordance with the sale contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceplance have been satisfied

Revenue |s recognised based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer (Transaction price) and is net of promotional warranty, retumns, trade
discounts, and goods and services tax (GST)

The products are often sold with discounts and customers have a right to return faully products Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the
discounts and returns The discounts are assessed based on anticipated expected cost. The Company recognises contract liabilities for sales return (hereinafter
referred to as 'refund liability') based on reasocnable expectation reflecting sale relurn rate incurred historically The Company estimales an amount of variable
consideration by using the expected value approach which the Company expects to better predict the amount of consideration. The Company recognises revenue with

transaction price including variable consideration to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the accumulated amount of revenue will not occur
when the refund period has lapsed

The transaction price in an arrangement musl be allecated lo each performance cbligation based on relative stand alone selling price of the goods or services being
provided lo a customer. The Company determines the stand alone price for each performance obligation by using 'adjusted markel assessment approach’. In limited
circumstances, the Company uses an 'expected cost plus a margin approach’ to estimate stand alone selling price

Refund liability for the expected returns from customers 15 recognised as an adjustment to revenue The Company has a right to recover the products from the
customer when the customer exercises his right of return and recognises an assel and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales A night fo recover the products Is
measured al the carrying amount of the product

The Company's obligation to repair or replace faulty products under the standard warranty and extended warranty terms is recognised as provisien and disclosed in
Note No 13 & Note No 14 respectively

According to tha rules and guidance on the terms and conditions of international trading (INCOTERMS 2010), the Company recognisas the transportation services as
a separate performance obligation apart from sale of goods for the lransactions where seller is responsible for paying shipping cost

Revenua from sale of scrap arising during the manufacturing is recognised when control is transferred being when the scrap malerials are cellecled by the scrap
dealer

Sales, installation and commissioning contracts

The fixed price contract of sales, installation and commissioning are integrated contracts and revenue is recognised at a point in time when the performance obligation
is met basis the output oriented method (i.e. milestone completion) and where no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be
derived on complation of the contract. Milestone is determined on the basis of survey of work performed up to the reparting date

Provision for anticipated loss is recognised where it is probable that the estimated contract costs are likely to exceed the total contract revenue Provision is made for
liquidated damages and penalties in terms of the contract wherever there is a delayed delivery attributable to the Company

Maintenance service contracts
Revenue frem maintenance contracts are recognised on a pro-rala basis over the period of the contract

Other income
Incame from interest on bank deposits is recognised on the time proportion method taking into consideration the amount ocutstanding and the applicable intarest rates

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for cbsolescence and other losses, wherever considered necessary

Cast of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity Cost of inventorles also
include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present |ocation and candition. Goods in transit are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sales The
basis for determination of cost of various categories of inventory are as follows

Category Basis of determination
Raw materials, stores and spares and packaging malerials Monthly weighted average
Stock-in-trade Monthly weighted average
Monthly weighted average of matenial cost plus an
Finished goods (manufactured), work in progress appropriate share of |abour and manufacturing

overheads wheraever applicable

Provision for obsolescence on surplus slores and spares held to support servicing of discontinued models and cost of certain obsclete/dormant models is accrued at
lower of carrying value and estimated fair value The recoverability of all other inventories is pericdically reviewed and an impairment loss is recognised only when
carrying valua exceeds the fair value

Provisions and contingencies

The Company creates provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event Further, it is probable thal an outflow of resources will be required ta
settle tha abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is possible
obligation or a present cbligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no pravision or disclosure 1s made

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingenciaes have been made in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets' The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required besl judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to
potential loss Should circumstances change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter

Provisions are raviewed at each Balance Sheel date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate If it is no longer probable that the cutflow of resources would be
required fo setlle the obligation, the provision is reversed

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements However, conlingen! assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic
benefit will anse, the assel and the related income are recognised in the year in which the change occurs




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

D)

E)

F)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost net of tax/ duty credit availed less government grants received to purchase/construct assets, accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. When the significant part of property plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
derecagnises the written down value of replaced parts and recognises the new part with it own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when
a major repair and inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as replacements, only if recognition criteria are
satisfied. All the other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets al rates which are higher / lower than
the rates specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 The Iife of the assets has been assessed as under based on tachnical advice, taking into account the

nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset. the operating conditions of the assel, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support etc The estimated useful lives are as follows

Useful life as Estimated Useful Life
Cat : per (Years)
ategory of property, plant and equipment Schedute Il
(Years)

Building a0 10-20

Plant and machineries 15 5-10
Furniture and fixtures 10 5

Office equipment 5 5
Computers 3 5

Vehicles 8 5

Useful lives, depreciation method and residual value are reviewed by the management at the end of each reporting period
Gain and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount of property, plant and equipment These are included in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

An assel's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount iIf the assets carrying amount 1s greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Impairment
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets lo determine whether there
is any indication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is eslimaled in order lo

determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) When it is nol possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates lhe
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belengs

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-ganerating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is racognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevan! assel is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount dees not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant
asset Is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

Non-Financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nol be recoverable An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assels or groups of assets (cash-generating units) Non-financial
assets other than goodwill thal suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period

Warranty

The estimated liability for product warranty is recorded when producls are sold based on management's best estimate The same is included under eustomer service
expenses These estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates
regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions or product failures The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24 Other Accounting Policies

A)

The other accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are lisled as below

Financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the relevant instrument. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights o receive benefits have expired or been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of such financial asset Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a lime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the lrade date | e , the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

1) those to be measured subsequently either by fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value through profit and loss, and

it) those measured at amortised cost

The classificalion depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assats and the contractual terms of the cash flows

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will aither be recorded in the Statemant of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment al fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reperted in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforcaable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention lo setlle on a nel basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously The legally enforceabla right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty

Measurement

Al initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value other than trade receivables which are measured at the transaclion price, in the case of

a financial asset not at far value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are cansidered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business mode! for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset
There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments

« Amortised cost. Assets Lhat are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost A gain or loss on a debt investment that 1s subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship Is recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss when the assel is derecognised or impaired Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effeclive
interest rate method.

« Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the asset's cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses) Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method

+ Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss and presented nel in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it anises Interest income from these
financial assets 1s included in other income

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are financial assets with determinable receipts that are nol quoted in an active market. These are recognised intially at transaction value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any expected credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments/deposits with original maturities of three menths or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdraft

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss /allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through prefit or loss Loss
allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those
are measured at lifetime ECL The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required o adjusl the loss allowance alt the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profil and Loss

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- ratains the contractual rights 1o receive the cash flows of the financial assel but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows lo one or more recipients

Where the Company has transferred an assel, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to end of financial year which are unpaid The amounts are unsecured and
are usually paid based on trade terms Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period They are recognised initially at ransaction value and subsequently measurad at amortised cost using effective interest method

Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency

exposures The counterparty for these conlracls is generally a bank Changes in fair value of derivatives including forward exchange contracts are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss
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LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

B)

C)

D)

Government grants

Government grants are nol recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants will be
received

i) Government grants wherein primary condition is that the Cempany should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deduction

from property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systemalic and raticnal basis
over the useful lives of the related assets

i) Government grants of industrial promotion subsidy are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises relaled revenue on which grant for laxes are intended to compensate

iii) Export benefits in respect of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) and Remission of Duties or Taxes on Export Products Scheme (RoDTEP) under
Foreign Trade Policy of India are recognised as income in the year in which goods are exported at fair value of consideration received or receivable

iv) Export benefits arising from duty drawback scheme is recognised on export of goods in accordance with the underlying scheme at fair value of consideration
received or raceivable

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, provident fund, employees' stale insurance, gratuity, compensated absences, long term service award and staff
welfare expenses

Defined contribution plans

In accordance with the provisions of the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and The Employee's State Insurance Acl, 1948, eligible
employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits with respect to provident fund and employee state insurance, a defined contribution plan in which both the

Company and the employee contribute monthly at a determined rate Company's contribution to provident fund and employees state insurance is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss

Retirement benefit costs

The Company cpertataes the following schemes
Defined benefit plans such as gratuity. Ieave and long term service award
Defined contribution plans such as provident fund

Payments to retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the benefit

Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an acluarial valuation as at the
Balance Sheel date In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1872, the plan provides for lump sum payments lo vested employeas on retirement, dealh while

in servica or on termination of employment an amount equivalent to 15 days' basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upen completion of five
years of service

Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss Gain or Loss on account of measurements are recognised
immediately through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur

- service cost (including past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailment and settlement),
= net interest expense or income, and
« measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item - employee benefits expense
Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year
when the employees render the service

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences benefits payable to employees of the Company on retirement. death while in service or on termination of employment or separation with
respect to accumulated leaves outstanding at the year end are accounted for on the basis of an actuanal valuation as at the Balance Sheet dale Measurements as
result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Long-term service award

Eligible employees are entilled ta long term servica award, which are in the nature of lang lerm benefit and are estimated based on actuanal valuation as at the
Balance Sheet date

Income tax

Income lax expense represents sum of the current fax and deferred tax Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right
to offset and either intends to settle on a nel basis, or lo realise the asset and the liability simultaneously

Current tax

The tax curranlly payabla is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss bacause
of items of income or expense thal are taxable or deductible in other years and items lhat are never taxable or deductible The Company's current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the reporting period Management periodically evaluates posilion taken in lax retumns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provision wherever appropriale

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s racognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the financial stalements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabililies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are
genarally recognised for all deductible temporary differances to the extent that it is probable that taxable profils will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recagnised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit amended with effect from April 1, 2023

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measurad at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enactad or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequenices that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are alsc recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respeclively

A~
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LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

E)

F)

G)

H)

J

K)

L)

M)

Leases

The Cempany recognises right of use assets and lease liabilities for all non canceliable leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is
low value in nature

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the following

- The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- Any lease payment made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentive received

- Initial direct cost (if any)

- Restoration cost (if any)

Depreciation en right of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities are recognised as an expense in the Statemenl of Profit and Loss over the shorter of the

assel's useful life and the lease term on a straight line basis The lease payments made by the Company under the lease arrangement are adjusted against the lease
liabilities

Payment of cancellable or low value leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systemalic basis is more
representative of the time patlern in which economic benefits from the leased assel are consumed

For lease liabilities at the commencement dale, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments thal are not paid at that date
The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets mainly representing computer software are acquired separately and are carried at cost less government grants received to purchase/construct
assets, accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. The
eslimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospactive basis

The estimated useful life is as follows

Useful life

Category of assets (Years)

Software 3-5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ mannar consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) Managing Director and
Chief Financial Officer have been identified as the chief oparating decision maker 1o assess the financial performance and position of the Company and make
strategic decisions. The Company identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nalure of risks and returns and the internal organisation and
management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial infarmation is available and for which operating profit ! loss amounts
are evaluated regularly by the execulive management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

The accounting policies adoptad for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company Segment revenue, segment expenses, sagment assets
and segment liabilities have been idenlified to segments on the basis of therr relationship to the operating activities of the segment (Refer Note No 34 for reportable
segments determined by the Company and segment information presentation)

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis are included under
unallocaled revenue / expensas / assels / liabilities

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculatad by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, inlerest and other
charges lo expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net
profit per shara from continuing ordinary operations Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed 1o be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
bean issued at a later date Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no langer at the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period

Customs duty

Customs duty (including GST) payable on stocks lying with custems or in bonded warehcuses as al the Balance Sheet date is accrued and included in the valuation of
closing stock. Payment of customs duty is deferred till clearance of goods

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted and lo the extent that there in no uncertainty in receiving the claims

Foreign currency transactions and translations

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of pnmary economic environment in which the Company cperates The Cempany's
functional currency is INR (%) as Company operates primarnly in India

Fareign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of transaction At each Balance Shest
date foreign currency monelary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange difference that arise on settlement of manetary items or on reporting at
each balance sheet date of the Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as income or expense in the period in which they arise. Translation
differences on assels and labilities carried at fair value are reported as part of fair value gain or loss

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cosls directly attributable to the acquisition, censtruction er production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, ara added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale Investment Income earnad on temporary in 1t of specific b ing pending their expenditure an qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

N)

0)

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and a sale is cansidered highly probable They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assels, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically
exempt from this requirement

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subseguent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less cosls lo sell. A gain is recognised for any
subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised A gain
or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the nan-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale Interest and other
expanses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and tha assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from |he other assets In the
Balance Sheet The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sala are presented separately from other liabilities in the Balance Sheet

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a separate line of business, as
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business. The net assels relating to such discontinued operations are presented as current assets and
the results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Subsequent events

Material adjusting events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance. Adjusting events refers to those events that provides additional
information about pre-existing conditions that existed on the Balance Sheet date
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LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 4(a) : Intangible assets

(In Million)
Computer
Description of assets software
z
As at March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2022 321
Additions during the year 49
Disposals during the year -
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 370
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2022 233
Amortisation charge during the year 38
Disposals during the year 5
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 271
Net carrying amount 99
As at March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2023 370
Additions during the year 28
Government grant received during the year 1
Disposals during the year 11
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 386
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2023 271
Amortisation charge during the year 44
Government grant amortised during the year 1
Disposals during the year 1"
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 303
Net carrying amount 83
Note 4(b) : Intangible assets under development
(In Million)

Description of assets To;al
As at March 31, 2023
Opening carrying amount as at April 01, 2022 6
Additions during the year 46
Capitalised during the year 49
Closing carrying amount as at March 31. 2023 3
As at March 31, 2024
Opening carrying amount as at April 01, 2023 3
Additions during the year 27
Capitalised during the year 28
Closing carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 2

Ageing for Intangible assets under development

¥

(In Million)
Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of
. Total
Projects in progress Lef:::f" 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Ed ? ? z 2
As at March 31, 2024 - 2 z 3 2
As at March 31, 2023 3 - » ) 3
Completion schedule for Intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue as compared to its original plan
(In Million)
To be completed in
al
Project in progress Le:ls:;::n 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years et
4 2 Z L3 4
As at March 31, 2024 2 3 o A 2
As at March 31, 2023 5 = = I3 .
v 5




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 5 : Trade receivables

(In Million)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Current

Non-Current

Current

Non-Current

4

¥

¥

Trade receivables from contract with cuslomers
Trade receivables from contract with customers —
related parties

[Refer Nate No 28(b]]

Less Loss allowance

Break-up of secunty delails
- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered good
= Which have significant increase in credit nsk
- Credil impaired

Less: Loss allowance

16,459
1,823

312

72

72

12,749
2,592

346

72

17,970

14,995

18,282

312

72

72

15,341

348

Total trade receivables

17,870

14,995

Ageing of current trade receivables
As at March 31, 2024

Trade Receivables

Not due

Outstanding for follo

wing periods fro

m the due date

Less than 6
manths

6 months

1-2
years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

In Million)
Total

.4

-1 year
L4

4

T

¥

Undisputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significanl increase in credil risk
- Credit impaired

Less Loss allowance

Disputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which hava significan! increasa in credil risk
- Credil impaired

Less: Loss allowance

Trade receivables-Unbilled

17211

132

B46

10

24

40
133

152

18,149
133

312

17,079

836

17

17

21

17,970

As at March 31, 2023

{In Million)

Trade Receivables

Not due

Qutstanding for follo

Less than 6
months

& months
-1 year

1-2

wing periods from the due dat

2-3
years

Mare than

Total

]

¥

years
L4

L4

3 years
14

L

Undisputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired

Less: Loss allowance

Disputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significant increase in credi risk
- Credit impaired

Less: Loss allowance

Trade receivables-Unbilled

14,362

152

20

172

151

15341

346

14,211

730

13

16

21

14,995

Ageing of non current trade receivables
As al March 31, 2024

(In Millicn)

Trade Recelvables

Not due

OQutstanding for follo

Less than 6
months

& months
-1 year

years

years

wing periods from the due date
1-2 2-3 Mare than

3 years

Total

z

z

1

[

Undisputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significanl increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired

Less: Loss allowance

Disputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired

Less Lass allowance

Trade receivables-Unbilled

72

72

72

72

As at March 31, 2023

(In Million)

Trade Receivables

Mot due

Qutstanding for follo

wing periods from the due date

Less than 6 |
months

6 manths

1-2
years

2-3
__years

More than

Total

¥

z

-1 year
]

4

¥

3 years
z

z

Undisputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significant increase in credil risk
- Credit impaired

Less: Loss allowance

Disputed trade receivables

- Considered good

- Which have significant increase in credit risk
- Credil impaired

Less: Loss allowance

Trade receivables-Unbilled

72

72

72

72




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 6 : Financial assets - Loans

(In Million)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
4 g L g
Loans to employees
- Secured, considered good = - - -
- Unsecured, considered good 18 55 21 48
Total loans 18 55 21 48
Note 7 : Other financial assets
(In Million)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
g T g Z
(a) Recoverable from related parties [Refer Note No 28(b)] 85 - 57 -
(b) Government grant recoverable
Unsecured, considered good 637 803 361 846
Considered doubtful 3 4 - 15
Less: Loss allowance 3 4 - 15
637 803 361 846
(c) Security deposits #
Unsecured, considered good 176 338 176 344
Considered doubtful - 2 - 2
Less: Loss allowance - 2 5 2
176 338 176 344
(d) Derivative financial assets 5 - - -
(e) Other recoverables
Unsecured, considered good 27 - 19 3
Considered doubtful | - 1 -
Less: Loss allowance 1 3 1 2
27 - 19 3
Total other financial assets 930 1,141 613 1,193

# Includes Current and Non-Current portion of deposits made for residential accommodation on behalf of directors amounting to ¥ 1 Million and ¥ 2 Million

respectively (March 31, 2023 : 2 2 Million and ¥ 2 Million respectively).[Refer Note No 28(b)]




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 8 : Other assets

{In Million)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
2 L4 Z 2
Capital advance
(i) Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good 2 - 27 -
2 - 27 »
Advance other than capital advance
(i) Advance to suppliers
Unsecured, considered good 53 - 100 -
Unsecured, considered doubtful 2 - 1 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful assets 2 - 1 <
53 - 100 &
(i) Balances with government authorities
(other than income taxes)
Unsecured, considered good
a) Excise and customs duty recoverable 2 50 2 44
b) Sales tax recoverable (Refer Note No (i) below) - 154 - 155
c) GST recoverable 994 41 1,432 2
Unsecured, considered doubtful
a) Excise and customs duty recoverable - 307 = 282
b) Sales tax recaverable - 24 - 24
c) GST recoverable - 11 - 11
Less: Allowance for doubtful assets
a) Excise and customs duty recoverable - 307 - 282
b) Sales tax recoverable - 24 - 24
c) GST recoverable - 11 - 11
996 245 1,434 201
(iii) Advance income tax
[net of provision for income tax Z 60,126 million
(March 31, 2023: % 55,302 million) (Refer Note No 31(A)
and Note No (ii) below)] m 1,772 F: 1,772
(iv) Prepayments 114 14 117 8
(v) Insurance advance
Unsecured, considered good 123 - 64 -
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1 - 1 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful assets 1 - 1 -
123 - 64 -
(vi) Right to recover returned goods 171 - 164 -
(vii) Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) 7 - 30 -
(viii) Others
Unsecured, considered good - 21 - 20
Unsecured considered doubtful - 35 - 35
Less' Allowance for doubtful assets - 35 - 35
(Refer Note No (iii) below)
- 21 - 20
Total other assets 1,466 2,052 1,936 2,001

Notes:

(i) Sales tax recoverable include amount paid under protest aggregating to 155 Million (March 31, 2023: #161 Million).
(i) Adjustment of provision has been done assessment year wise to the extent of tax paid. In respect of any assessment year, where tax provision
created is in excess of tax paid then (Net) provision for the respective years are reflected in Note No 14(b)

(iii) Others represent withholding tax recoverable amounting to 10 Million (March 31, 2023: 10 Million) and deposits paid under protest amounting to

Z 46 Million (March 31, 2023; Z 45 Million)

Note B(a) : Assets held for sale

(In Million)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
4 Z i Z

(i) Buildings - - 2 E,
(i) Plant and machineries - - B "
(iii) Assets related to discontinued operations

(Refer Note No 35) = = 32 o
Total other assets - - 40 -

r \’)r g




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 9 : Inventories

(In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
z 2

(a) Raw materials 11,643 13,424
(b) Work-in-progress 351 365
(c) Finished goods 8,099 9,218
(d) Stock-in-trade 2,031 1,682
(e) Stores and spares 1,830 1,731
() Packaging material 20 22
Inventories 23,974 26,442
Less: Inventories related to discontinued operation - 32
(Refer Note No 35)
Total inventories 23,974 26,410
Included above, goods-in-transit:
(i) Raw materials 4,517 6,483
(i) Stock-in-trade 604 458
(iii) Stores and spares 110 53
Total goods-in-transit 5231 6,994

Note:

(i) Write-down of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year amounts to 210
Million (March 31, 2023: ¥22 Million). These were included in changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-
trade and work-in-progress in Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer Note No 20 (c)).

(ii) Details of inventories lying with third parties:

(In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 4
Raw materials 1,062 1,331
Finished goods and stock-in-trade 8 13
Total 1,070 1,344
Note 10 : Cash and cash equivalents
(In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 Zz
(a) Balance with banks
(i) In current accounts# 696 246
(i) In Exchange Earner's Foreign Currency Accounts 458 345
(b) Cash on hand 8 5
(c) Bank deposits with maturity of less than three months# * 21,064 27,030
Total cash and cash equivalents 22,226 27,626

# Balance with banks in current accounts and Bank deposits with maturity of less than three months includes
balance in separate CSR unspent account amounting to ¥ 28 Million and ¥543 Million respectively which are
considered restricted (March 31, 2023 : # 56 Million and ¥ 419 Million respectively) [Refer Note No 33].

* Includes interest accrued on Bank deposits of Z 53 Million (March 31, 2023 Z 111 Million)



LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 11 : Equity share capital

Share capital

(In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
L T
(a) Authorised
115,000,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each with voting rights 1,150 1,150
(115,000,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each with voting rights)
(b) Issued
113,128,732 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each with voting rights 113 1,131
(113,128,732 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each with voting rights)
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up
113,128,732 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each with voting rights
(113,128,732 Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights) 1,131 1,131
Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.
Notes:
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Parteulers No. of 7 No. of T
shares held (In Million) shares held (In Million)

Equity shares with voting rights
Balance at the beginning of the year 113,128,732 1,131 113,128,732 1,131
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 113,128,732 1,131 113,128,732 1,131

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their

shareholding.

(i) Details of shares held by the holding company and its subsidiary company:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Name of shareholder No. of T No. of T
shares held (In_Million) shares held (In Million)
Equity shares with voting rights
LG Electronics Inc., South Korea, (The Holding company) 113,128,726 1,131 113,128,726 1,131
LG Soft India Private Limited (Subsidiary of the holding company) 6 N 6 ®
Total 113,128,732 1,131 113,128,732 1,131
* Amount is below rounding-off norm adopted by the Company.
(iii) Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
As at As at
Naine of Sharelialdor March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of o No. of o
shares held ° shares held s
LG Electronics Inc., South Korea, (The Holding company) 113,128,726 100% 113,128,726 100%
(iv) Details of shareholding of promoters:
As at As at
Name of the promoter March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of % No. of o,
shares held ! shares held "
LG Electronics Inc., South Korea, (The Holding company) 113,128,726 100 113,128,726 100
LG Soft India Private Limited (Subsidiary of the holding company) L:] * 6 ¥
* Amount is below rounding-off norm adopted by the Company.
There has been no change during the year in shareholding of promoters

\%'Ai

O
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LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 18 : Revenue from operations

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 Z
Revenue from contracts with customers
- Sale of products (Refer Note No (i) below) 206,531 192,739
- Rendering of services (Refer Note No (ii) below) 5,769 4,846
212,300 197,585
Other operating revenues (Refer Note No (iii) below) 1,220 1,061
Total revenue from operations 213,520 198,646
Notes : (In Million)
(i) Sale of products
Stock-in-trade 23,706 23,673
Less: Sale return 218 364
Total - sale of stock-in-trade 23,488 23,309
Manufactured goods 184,076 170,225
Less: Sale return 1,033 795
Total - sale of manufactured goods 183,043 169,430
Total - sale of products 206,531 192,739
(i) Rendering of services
Service charges 2,865 2,446
Installation and commissioning 2,904 2,400
Total - rendering of services 5,769 4,846
(iii) Other operating revenue
Government grant related to revenue 524 443
Sale of scrap 431 362
Duty drawback and other export incentives 265 256
Total - other operating revenue 1,220 1,061
The following table shows timing of revenue recognition:
(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 E4
Satisfied at a point in time 209,396 195,185
Satisfied over time 2,904 2,400
Total revenue from contracts with customers 212,300 197,585
Revenue recognition on the basis of product category and geographical location of customers has been disclosed
in Note No.34.
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligation resulting from fixed-price contracts:
(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 Z
3,525 2,546

Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to fixed price
contracts that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at reporting date

The Company estimates that transaction price amount to 1,852 Million (March 31, 2023 : 1,386 Million) will be
recognised as revenue during the next reporting period out of unsatisfied contracts and remaining amount will be

recognised in subsequent financial years.
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price :

_(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
L3 4
Contract price 241,648 221,610
Variable considerations 28,128 22,964
Revenue from operations 213,520 198,646

o




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 19 ; Other income

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i 2

Interest Income
Interest income on bank deposits 1,989 2,202
Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly attributable to such income)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) 8 7
Gain on derivatives measured at fair value (Net) 20 164
Miscellaneous income 34 67
Total other income 2,051 2,440

AN




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 20
(a) Cost of materials consumed (In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
z z
Opening inventories 13,446 13,412
Add: Purchases of raw materials 152,586 149,158
166,032 162,570
Less: Sales of raw materials 29,732 29,274
Less: Closing inventories 11,663 13,446
Cost of raw materials consumed* 124,637 119,850
Cost of service spare parts sold 1,540 1,352
Installation and commissioning 4,785 3,422
Captive consumption of finished goods (1,802) (1,016)
Cost of materials consumed 129,160 123,608
*Cost of raw materials consumed includes packaging material
(b) Purchase of stock-in-trade (In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 L4
Purchase of stock-in-trade 19,756 19,403
Captive consumption of stock-in-trade (398) (615)
Purchase of stock-in-trade 19,358 18,788
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
z T
Closing inventories:
Finished goods 8,099 9,218
Stock-in-trade 2,031 1,682
Work-in-progress 351 365
A) Total 10,481 11,265
Opening inventories:
Finished goods 9,218 6,417
Stock-in-trade 1,682 2,372
Work-in-progress 365 361
B) Total 11,265 9,150
Net decrease / (increase) (B-A) 784 (2,115)
N




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 21 : Employee benefits expense

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ed Z
Salaries and wages, including bonus 7,290 6,507
Contribution to provident fund and employees’ state insurance scheme 285 258
Contribution to defined benefit plan 149 136
Staff welfare expenses 1,144 1,091
Total employee benefits expense 8,868 7,992
Note 22 : Finance costs
(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 E4
Interest on lease liabilities 269 225
Interest on delayed payment of custom duty 16 -
Interest on delayed payment of income tax - 1
Total finance costs 285 226
N“ﬂ‘ / .

¥




LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z i
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- Owned assets (net of government grant amortisation) 2,830 2,350
- Right of use assets 77 616
Amortisation of intangible assets (net of government grant amortisation) 43 38
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 3,644 3,004
Note 24 : Other expenses
(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z ?
Consumption of consumables and spares 427 391
Customer service expenses [Refer Note No (ii) below] 2,350 1,930
Sample and testing 8 5
Power and fuel 803 828
Royalty (Refer Note No 32) 4,032 3,232
Rent 779 847
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 91 97
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machineries 136 102
Repairs and maintenance - others 365 357
Insurance 416 349
Rates and taxes 47 14
Communication and information technology expenses 665 572
Travelling and conveyance 562 475
Research and development 827 737
Freight and forwarding 7,631 7,346
Advertisement 2,548 2,671
Sales promotion 6,860 6,228
Bank charges 39 20
Legal and professional 82 83
Payments to auditors [Refer Note No (i) below] 21 22
Trade receivables written-off 14 19
Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (Net) 260 1,080
Property, plant and equipment written-off 3 3
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables, other financial assets and other assets (18) 48
Provision for warranty expenses (Refer Note No 30) 137 87
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note No 33) 381 420
Waste of electrical and electronic equipment 1,942 1,852
Miscellaneous expenses 1,691 1,565
Total other expenses 33,101 31,380
Notes:
(i} Payments to auditors comprises:
Audit fee 19 19
Tax audit fee 1 1
Reimbursement of expenses 1 2
Certification fee - '
Total 21 22

* Amount is below rounding-off norm adopted by the Company.

(ii) Customer service expenses include consumption of spares aggregating to ¥755 Million (March 31, 2023: 2816 Million)
and indirect expenses (including expenses related to service and call centres) aggregating to 445 Million

(March 31, 2023: 505 Million).

At
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LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Market risk

i) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk on the US Dollar.

The purpose of foreign exchange risk management is to provide the foundation of stable business operations by minimizing
the uncertainty and volatility of foreign exchange gains and losses from foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

The Company has its own foreign exchange policy through which the Company minimizes the exposure to foreign exchange
risk by netting off foreign exchange assets and liabilities from general operating activities .The Company considers foreign
exchange risk hedges against its remaining exposure with derivative financial instruments and scrutinizes changes in foreign

exchange exposure and the results of hedging activities on a monthly basis. Speculative foreign exchange trading is
prohibited.

Refer Note No 37 for the details on derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure,

1i) Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss due to changes in exchange rates arises mainly from US Dollar denominated financial assets

and liabilities. Following are impact on profit and loss due to increase or decrease of foreign currency against INR (). Impact
on other components of equity is nil.

(In Million)
Impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
z Z

Foreign currency sensitivity
Trade receivables
Increase by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)" 211 267
Decrease by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* (211) (267)
Other receivables
Increase by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* 9 5
Decrease by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* (9) (5)
EEFC
Increase by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* 46 35
Decrease by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* (46) (35)
Trade payables
Increase by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* (1,385) (1,472)
Decrease by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* 1,385 1,472
Net impact
Increase by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)* (1,119) (1,165)
Decrease by 10% (March 31, 2023-10%)" 1,119 1,165

*Keeping all other variables constant

Interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. To manage this, the management periodically analyses historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable.
The Company has secured the credit risk against the trade receivables through credit insurance.

For other financial assets, the Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. To assess whether

there is significant increase in credit risk, the Company does reasonable analysis of counterparty's financial capability based
on following information :

(i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;

(i) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its
obligation;

(iii) Significant increase in credit risk and other financial instruments of the same counterparty;
(iv) Significant changes in the value of collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees or credit
enhancements.

The expected credit loss on security deposits, bank balances / deposits and government grants has been determined to be
immaterial.

The allowance for expected credit (gain) / loss on customer balances is given below :

(In Million)
As at March | As at March

Particulars 31, 2024 31, 2023

Zz Z

Balance at the beginning 418 413
Impairment (gain) / loss recognised (20) 24
Amount written off 14 19
Balance at the end 384 418

The Company's credit period generally ranges from 0-30 days. Considering the large number of customers to which the
Company sale, the credit risk in trade receivables is not concentrated in a single / few customers. The Company has
performed an analysis of historical bad debts and has used the provision matrix approach to determine expected credit loss

(ECL) on such receivables. The expected credit loss on frade receivables as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is
determined to be not material.




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

D) Capital management
Risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) + Total equity (as shown in the Balance Sheet)

(In Million)}
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Z k4

Equity share capital 1,131 1,131

Other equity 36,591 42,431

Total equity 37,722 43,562

Lease liabilities 3,700 3,185

Total debt 3,700 3,185

Less :

Cash and cash equivalents 22,226 27,626

Net debt - -
|Net debt to equity ratio 0.00% 0.00%

[ ™/ . £\
(2 kP Tower \c* ]
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LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

E) Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk encompasses any risk that the Company cannot fully meet its financial obligations. To manage the liquidity risk, cash flow forecasting is performed by
finance team. The Company's finance team monitors rolling forecasts for the Company's liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash lo meet operational

needs and so thal the Company does not breach borrowing limils or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

Financing arrangements

The entity had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities al the end of the reporting period:

(In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
2 &
Undrawn working capital facility* # 3,391 4131

*Warking capital facility from banks are secured by letter of support from LG Electronic Inc. (The Holding company) [(Refer Note No 28(b)).

# Includes working capital facility of USD 10 Million (March 31, 2023: USD 10 Million).

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the entity's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

i) All non-derivative financial liabilities, and
iy Derivative financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of

discounting is not significant.

(In Million)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Leswthan 1to 5 years Minrethn, 5 Total
March 31, 2024 1 yeur years

2 L4 2 2
Non-derivatives
Trade payables 30,351 = - 30,351
Other financial liabilities 2,881 - - 2,881
Lease liabilities 853 2,089 2,022 4,964
Derivatives
Derivative financial liabilities - - - -
Total 34,085 2,089 2,022 38,196
(In Milion)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Liasithan 1to 5 years Morethanh Total
March 31, 2023 1.ysar ysars
! 2 2 3 L4

Non-derivatives
Trade payables 31,192 - = 31,192
Other financial liabilities 3,212 - e 3,212
Lease liabilities 690 1.545 2,259 4,494
Derivatives
Derivalive financial liabilities 24 - - 24
Total 35,118 1,545 2,259 38,922




LG Electronics Indla Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 26 (a) : Income tax

Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises: (In Million)
Year ended Year ended March
Particulars March 31, 2024 31,2023
2 Z

Current taxes (includes current tax on discontinued operations and Current

/ / 5607 4,797
tax expenses relating to previous year)
(Increase)/ decrease in deferred tax assets (450) (124
Increase/ (decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 95 37
Total 5,252 4,710

Current tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 includes 40 Million (March 31, 2023: 14 Million) pertaining

to prior periods.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

income before income taxes is summarised below:

(In Million
Year ended March

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 31, 2023
Ed Z
Profit before tax [includes loss on discontinued operations and
; e 20,341 18,153
remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligation]
Enacted tax rates in India 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense 5119 4,569
Current tax expenses relating to previous year 40 14
Permanent differences- Corporate social responsibility expense, 1ax on non- 93 127
monetary perquisites, interest under Section 234C and others.
Total tax expense 5,252 4,710

Note 26 (b) : Deferred tax

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the
deferred income tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible,
management believes that the Company will realise the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the
deferred income tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future

taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets

and liabilities are as

follows:
(In Million)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
4 z
Deferred Income tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 745 615
Provision for employee benefits 338 304]
Provision for cenvat credit on goods transport agency services 26 25
Disallowances u/s 40(a) 34 31
Allowance for doubtful t 149 142
Provision for long term service award 23 24
Provision for waste of electrical and electronic equipment 235 123
Lease liabilities 931 BO1
Provision for stamp duty 35 -
Others 3 4
Total deferred income tax assets 2,519 2,069
Deferred Income tax liabilitles
Right of use assets 778 681
Interest on Income tax refund 21 21
Provision for employee benefits recognised in Other Comprehensive X 2
Income
Total deferred Income tax liabllities 799 704
Deferred Income tax assets (Net) 1,720 1,365
Reconclliation of deferred tax assets (Net) {In Million
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
? L4
Opening balance 1,365 1,278
Tax income recognised during the year in Staternent of Profit and Loss 347 B5
Tax expense recognised during the year in Other Comprehensive Income 8 2
Closing balance 1,720 1,365
/
Qe
- P
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LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 27 : Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standards( Ind AS) 18 Employee Benefits

efine tion plans
The Company makes Provident Fund and Employees' State Insurance contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees Under the Scheme, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to registered provident fund and emplayee state insurance administered by government.
The Company recognised 2 285 Million {March 31, 2023 = ¥ 258 Million) for Provident Fund contributions and Employees' State Insurance contributions in the
Slatement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable under these plans by the Company are at the rates specified in the rules of the respective schemes

Defined benefit plans

The Company offers various employee benefit schemes to its employees Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to defined benefit plan,
other long-term employee benefit obligations and long term service award are accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation determined using projected unit
credit method as at the Balance Sheet date

The following table sets cut the funded status of the defined benefit schemes (gratuity) and the amount recognised in the financial statements

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 E

Components of employer expense

Current service cost 109 102
Interest cost 90 79
Expected return on plan assels (42) (40)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 157 141

Remeasurements recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 1 1

Actuarial (gains) / losses

- from changes in financial assumptions 18 21

- Experience adjustments 11 28

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 30 8
Actual contribution and benefit payments for year

Actual benefit payments 67 64
Actual contributions 80 40
Net liability/ (asset) as at year end

Present value of defined benefit cbligation 1.480 1,328
Fair value of plan assets 664 610
Funded status [(Surplus) / Deficit] 826 718
Net liability/ {asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 826 718
The following table shows the defined benefit obligations (DBO) and Plan assets :

{In Miltion)
Year ended Year ended
\Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ Z

Changes in DBO during the year

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 1,328 1,203
1) Current service cost 109 102
i) Interest cost 80 79
ill) Change due to Acquisition / Divesture 1 =
) Actuanal losses / (gains) 29 8
v) Benefits paid (67) {64)
vi) Present value of DBO at the end of the year 1,490 1,328
Change in fair value of assets during the year

i) Plan assets at beginning of the year 610 593
11) Expected return on plan assels 42 40
i) Actual Company contributions 80 40
i) Actuarial (losses) / gains 1) 1
v) Benefits paid (67) (64)
vi) Fair Value of Plan assets at end of the year 664 610
Composition of the plan assets is as follows:

Government of India securities 55 13% 67.00%
Debt instruments 28.19% 2500%
Equity shares 4 60% 6 00%)
Other deposits 12.0B8% 2.00%)

The plan assets of the Company are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India, ICICI Prudential Life Insurance, India First Life Insurance Company Limited and
Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited taken to fund obligations of the Company with respect to its gratuity plan which |s being administered by LG Electronics
India Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Fund The categories of plan assels as a percentage of total plan assets is based on information provided by Life
Insurance Corporation of India, ICICI Prudential Life Insurance, India First Life Insurance Company Limited and Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited wilh
respect to their investment pattern for group gratuity fund for investments managed in total for several other companies




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Employee benefit plans (cont'd)

Year ended Year ended

FacLns March 31,2024 | _March 31, 2023
Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 695% 7.15%
Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%)|
Salary escalation 8.00% 8 00%
Mortality tables IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Attrition 10% 10%
Relirement age 58 58

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Shest date for the estimated term of obligations

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, senicrity, promotion, increments and other relevant factors

Through its defined benefil plans, the Company is exposed to a numbar of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below

A) Asset volatility- The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate sel with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will creale a
deficit Most of the plan asset investments are in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securitias These are subject to interest rate risk and the
fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to minimise risk to an acceplable level A portion of the funds are invested in equily securities and in alternative
investments which have low correlation with aquity securities The equity securities are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and contribute to the
plan deficit. The Company has a risk management strategy where the aggregate amount of risk exposure on a portfolio level is maintained at a fixed range Any
deviations from the range are carrected by rebalancing the portfolio The Company intends to maintain the above investment mix in the continuing years

B) Changes in bond yields - A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilites. although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of tha plans’ bond

holdings

C) Inflation risks - In the defined plans, the payment are not linked to inflation, so this is a less material risk

D) Life expectancy - The increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans’ liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result

in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy

E) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan's

liability

(In Million
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Experience adjustments March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
L4 4 2 L4 4
Presant value of DBO 1.480 1,328 1,203 1,113 963
Fair value of plan assets 664 810 593 528 452
Funded Status [Surplus / (Deficit)] (826) (718) (610) (585) (511)
E.xpalnenca (gain) / loss adjustments on 29 8 (28) 25 8
|Liabilities
Experience (loss) / gain adjustments on plan y 4 1
(1) 1
Assal
In Million
As at As at
Present value of obligations at end of the year March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 2
Current 162 148
Nen-Currant 664 570
Total 826 718

Expected contribution to defined benefit plan for the year ending March 31, 20251s ¥ 120 Million (March 31, 2024 = 2 109 Million)

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

(In Million)
As at As at
Expected maturity analysis March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
? 2
Less than a year 162 148
Between 1-2 years 167 148
3-5 years 485 420
6 years and above 1,676 1,564
Total 2,490 2,280
Sensitivity analysis (In Million
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate 2 2
Revised DBO due to 1% decrease in Discount Rate 1,588 1,418
Rovised DBO due to 1% increasae in Discount Rate 1,403 1,249
Salary Escalation Rate
Revised DBO due to 1% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate 1,403 1,249
Revised DBO due lo 1% increase in Salary Escalalion Rate 1,586 1,416

The above sensitivily analysis are based on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumptions constant In praclice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes

in some of the assumptions may be correlated




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Other long-term employee benefit obligations:

(In Million)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Compensated absences 2024 2023
¥ ?
Current 413 385
Non-current - -
Total 413 385

Compensated absences are presenled as current liabilities in the Balance Sheel as the Company does not have an unconditional legal and contractual right to defer
settlement for a period beyond twelve months after the reporting period

(In Million)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Long term service award obligation 2024 2023
4 z
Current 16 28
Non-current 74 66
Total 90 94

—
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LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

28. Related party transactions

The Company has entered into transactions with its Holding company and fellow subsidiaries controlled by the Holding
company as mentioned below. The names of related parties of the Company as required to be disclosed under Ind AS 24

are as follows:

(a) Details of related parties:

Description of relationship

Name of related parties

The Holding company

LG Electronics Inc

Fellow subsidiaries
(Controlled by the Holding company)

LG Soft India Pvt. Ltd.

LG CNS Co. Ltd.

LG CNS India Private Ltd.

S&l Corp.

LG Display Co. Ltd.

LG Electronics (Huizhou) Inc.

LG Electronics (Levant) - Jordan

LG Electronics (Thailand) Co. Ltd

LG Electronics Africa Logistics FZE

LG Electronics Alabama, Inc.

LG Electronics Almaty Kazakhstan Co. Ltd
LG Electronics Australia Pty., Ltd

LG Electronics Dubai FZE

LG Electronics Gulf FZE

LG Electronics S.A.(Pty) Ltd

LG Electronics Singapore Pte Ltd

LG Electronics Taiwan Taipei Co.Ltd.

LG Electronics HK Ltd.

LG Electronics Taistar Taiwan

LG Electronics Tianjin Appliances Co. Ltd
PT LG Electronics Indonesia

PT. LG Innotek Indonesia

LG Electronics Inc. Chile Limited

LG Electronics Middle East Co. Ltd

LG Electronics Moracco S.AR.L.

LG Electronics Panama S.A

LG Electronics Philippines Inc.

LG Electronics Polska Spzo.o

Nanjing LG Panda Appliances Co. Ltd.

LG Electronics Magyar Kft.

LG Electronics (Kunshan) Co. Ltd

LG Electronics Qinhuangdao Co. Ltd.
Taizhou LG Electronics Refrigeration Co. Ltd.
LG Electronics Vietnam Haiphong Co. Ltd.
LG Electronics Hellas S.A

LG Electronics Nanjing New Technology Co.Ltd.
LG Electronics Air-Conditioning(Shandong) Co. Ltd.
LG Electronics Malaysia SDN. BHD

LG Electronics Mexico S.A. DE C.V

LG Electronics Egypt SAE

LG Electronics Mlawa Sp. z 0.0

LG Electronics Nanjing Display Co., Ltd
LG Electronics (China) Co., Ltd.

LG Electronics Argentina S.A.

LG Electronics Peru S.A.

PT. LG Electronics Service Indonesia

LG Electronics Canada, Inc.

LG Electronics Ticaret A.S.

LG Innotek Yantai Co., Ltd

Arcelik-LG Klima Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.
LG-Shaker Co. Ltd.

LG Electronics Overseas Trading FZE
Robostar Co., Ltd

LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp. z 0.0

LG Electronics European Shared Service Center BV.
LG Electronics Monterrey Mexico

Key management personnel (KMP)

Mr. Hong Ju Jeon (Managing Director)

Mr. Dong Myung Seo (Director and Chief financial
officer)

Mr. Hwayoung Seo (Director)

Mr. Jaeil Kim (Director)

Mr. Yongchan Jung (Director)

(with effect from January 18, 2024)

Mr. Hyunjin Lee (Director)

(Till December 28, 2023)

Mr. Younglak Kim ( Managing Director)

till December 22, 2022)
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LG Electronics India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{b)

Related party transactions (cont'd)

Details of related party transactions during the year:

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z ¥

Sale of raw materials, stores and spares and service components
Holding company 23 49
Fellow subsidianes
PT. LG Electronics Indonesia 212 202
Others 66 49
Sale of manufactured goods
Halding company 1,276 270
Fellow subsidianes
PT LG Electronics Indonesia 1,518 841
LG Electronics Africa Logistics FZE 1,402 2,048
LG Electronics Gulf FZE 1,219 2,544
LG Electronics Morocco S AR L. 649 460
LG Electronics (Levant) - Jordan 314 290
Others 350 400
Sale of stock-in-trade
Holding company 289 93
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Electronics Africa Logistics FZE 85 83
LG Electronics Singapore Pte Ltd 12 15
Others 36 29
Reimbursement of expenses received
Holding company 5 5
Fellow subsidianes
LG Electronics Africa Logistics FZE 1 A
LG Electronics Nanjing New Technology co LTD 1 -
LG Electronics Nanjing Display Co, Ltd - 3
Service warranty claims received
Holding company 237 284
Fellow subsidiares
Taizhou LG Electronics Refrigeration Co. Ltd 1 -
Purchase of raw materials, stores and spares and service components
Holding company 13,425 12,488
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Display Co.Ltd 2,687 4,210
Nanjing LG Panda Appliances Co., Ltd 2,204 3,297
LG Electronics Tian Jin Appliances Co,, Ltd 2,107 4,181
Others 3,821 3,941
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Holding company 9,238 8,065
Fellow subsidianes
Taizhou LG Electronics Refrigeration Co. Lid. 370 3,321
LG Electronics (Thailand) Co. Ltd. - 848
Others 511 695




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Related Party Transactions (cont'd)

Details of related party transactions during the year:

(In Million)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
14 2

Service warranty charges paid
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Electronics Middle East Co. Ltd 5 2
LG Electronics (Levant) - Jordan ) 3
Others 1 -
Royalty
Holding company ( Also Refer Note No 32 ) 4,032 3,232
Service charges paid
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Electronics Singapore Pte Ltd 15 14
Others 1 ]
Other expenses paid
Holding company 65 26
Fellow subsidiaries
LG CNS India Private Limited 760 682
LG CNS Co. Ltd 43 5
Others 1 1
Interim dividend paid
Holding company 20,929 24,888
Managerial remuneration
Key Management Personnel
Salaries and wages 200 182
Purchase of fixed assets
Holding company 161 331
Fellow subsidiaries
LG CNS India Private Limited 175 155
LG Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd 98 -
LG Electronics Tian Jin Appliances Co. Limited 1 124
Others 2 -




LG Electronics India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Related Party Transactions (cont'd)

Details of Related Party Outstanding Balances

{In Million)

Balances outstanding at the end of the year

As at

As at

March 31, 2024
L4

March 31, 2023
4

Trade receivables

Holding company 276 275
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Electronics Africa Logistics FZE 389 611
LG Electronics Gulf FZE 379 1,185
LG Electronics Morocco - SARL 288 249
P.T. LG Electronics Indonesia 230 145
LG Electronics (Levant)- Jordan 83 54
Others 178 73
Other financial assets
Holding company 82 52
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Electronics Qinhuangdao Co. Ltd. 1 1
QOthers 2 4
Trade payables
Holding company 3,445 4,034
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Display Co.Ltd 262 576
LG Electronics Thailand Co. Ltd 260 753
Taizhou LG Electronics Refrigeration Co. Ltd. 142 185
LG Electronics Tianjin Appliances Co. Ltd. 137 489
Others 881 1,438
Capital creditors
Holding company 19 4
Fellow subsidianes
LG CNS India Private Limited 5 2
Advance received from customers
Fellow subsidiaries
LG Display Co.Ltd 2 -
Security deposit for residential accommodation paid on behalf of directors
Key Management Personnel
Mr. Hong Ju Jeon 1 1
Mr. Hwayoung Seo 1 1
Mr. Yongchan Jung 1 %
Mr. Hyunijin Lee - 9
Mr. Younglak Kim - 1
(i) Also refer Note No 25(E) for letter of support from the Holding company.
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LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

29, Earnings per share

The following is the computation of earnings per share and a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted

earnings per equity share:

(In Million)
= Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T Z
a) Profit/(loss) for the year
(i) From continuing operations 15,111 13,480
(ii) From discontinued operations - (31)
Total profit for the year 15,111 13,449
b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 113,128,732 113,128,732
c) Effect of dilutive potential equity share equivalents - =
d) Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity share 113,128,732 113,128,732
equivalents outstanding
e) Nominal Value of Equity Shares ( ¥ ) 10 10
f) Earnings per equity share from continuing operations attributable
to the equity holders of the Company
- Basic earnings per share 133.57 119.16
- Diluted earnings per share 133.57 119.16
g) Earnings per equity share from discontinued operations attributable
to the equity holders of the Company
- Basic earnings per share - (0.27)
- Diluted earnings per share - (0.27)
h) Earnings per equity share from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company
- Basic earnings per share 133.57 118.89
- Diluted earnings per share 133.57 118.89
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LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

30.

Details of provisions

The Company has made provision for various contractual and other obligations based on its assessment of the amount to

be incurred to meet such obligations, details of which are given below:

(In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
g g
Provision for warranty
At the beginning of the year 667 580
Additions during the year 1,028 1,043
Utilised during the year 891 956
At the end of the year 804 667
Current 667 598
Non-current 137 69
804 667
Provision for other contingencies*
At the beginning of the year 195 119
Additions during the year 79 76
Reversed during the year - =
At the end of the year 274 195
Current 274 195
Non-current 2 2
274 195

*represents provision for indirect tax and legal contingencies.




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

31. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

A} Contingent liabilities

in Million;
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
4 ?
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt #
(a) |Demand notices from Central Excise/ Service Tax/ Customs
Department
Total demand 2,251 2,243
Less Provision 110 103
Total 2,141 2,140
(b) |Demand notices from Sales Tax Department / GST Department
Total demand 3125 1,160
Less Provision 53 53
Total 3,072 1,107
(c) |Demand from Income Tax Departmant
Total demand 22,500 22,108
Less Provision 1,885 1,885
Total 20,515 20,213
(d) |Other claims 278 254
Less Provision 5 73
Total 201 181
Total demands 28,152 25,855
Less Provision 2,223 2,214
Grand total 25,929 23,641
# Notes

i) Based on the interpretation of the provisions of applicable Acts and in respect of other legal cases, the Company is of the apinion that the above demands are likely to be
deleted or substantially reduced and accordingly no additional provision has been made

i} Excludes show cause nolices replied by the Company The Company has not yet heard from the appropriate authorities in the matter and is of the view that same are
net contingent in nature

iii) It is not practical for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows. if any. in respect of the above, pending resolution of the respective proceedings.

iv) During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company had evaluated the impact of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs
The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (1) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019
issuad by the Employess’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of cartain allowances from the definition of "basic wagas” of the relevant employees for
the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1852 In the assessment of the

management which was supported by legal advice, the aforesaid matter was not likely o have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in the
financial statements

v) Amounts are as per demand order and include penalty and interest, wherever applicable
vi) Refer Note Na 32 for contingency on advance pricing agreement an royalty

B) Commitments

(In Million
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
¥ ¥
Estimated amaunt of contracts remaining to be exacuted on capital account
and not provided for
Proparty, plant and equipment 359 102
Leases 4,964 4,494
=== =
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LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

32.

33.

Cantingency on advance pricing agreement of royalty
The Company has entered inlo a revised license agreement dated July 27, 2017 with its parent Company i e LG Electronics Inc., South Korea, for the use of technology
and brand name. In accordance with the aforesaid agreement, the Company is liable to pay royalty to LG Electronics Inc, South Korea. Based on the ariginal agreement,
royalty amounting to ¥ 4,032 Million has bean accrued for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 ¥ 3,232 Million) and remalining partion of royalty based on the
aforesaid Revised Licanse Agreement amounting to ¥ 67,437 Million for the period from April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2024 (¥ 59,867 Million for the period from April 01,
2016 to March 31, 2023) is contingent upon conclusion of the advance pricing agreement

The aforementioned Advance Pricing Agreement expired on March 31, 2023 Accordingly, the Company has filed an application on March 31, 2023 for the extension af the
said Advance Pricing Agreement for the financial years 202324 to 2027-28

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, requires that the board of directors of every
aligible Company, shall ensure that the Company spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy The details of CSR expenditure incurred are as follows

(In Million)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Particulars
L4 7
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ae5 412
Additional amount required ta be spent on account of interest earned on 16 B
bank deposits made out of separate CSR unspent account (Net of tax)
(b) Amount spent
1) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
2) On purpose other than (1} above
(1) Promoting healthcare and awareness 7 3
(i) Promoting education 4 53
(i) Benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents 10 1
(iv) Ensuring environmental sustainability 1 3
(v) CSR compliance and adminisirativa expenses 10 11
32 99
(c) Accrual towards unspent obligation in relation to
-Ongoing project 333 313
Detalls of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act {In Million)
Additional amount
Balance as at required to be spent on Amount spent during the Balance as at
April 01, 2023 ear March 31, 20
prs Amount required to 'i‘:’:::;‘::'::;:“ ¥ 202
be spent during the
i deposits made out of In separate
In separate CSR y separate CSR unspent | From the Company's |From separate CSR With the CSR
With the Company
unspent account account bank account unspent account Company # unspent
(Net of tax) account
? T 7 ? v ¥ ? 4
313 475 385 18 32 233 333 571
(In Million)

Balance as at
April 01, 2022

Additional amount
required to be spent on

Amount spent during the
year

Balance as at
March 31, 2023

account of interest
e | . samed onbank insepare
With the Company In geparste CSR year deposits made out of | From the Company's |From separate CSR With the CSR

unspent account separate CSR unspent bank account unspent account Company # unspent

account account

(Net of tax)
? ? ¥ L4 ? ? ¥ ?
399 157 412 8 99 89 313 475

# Balance with the Company has been deposiled in separate bank account within the stipulated time line




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

34

Segment reporting

The Company has identified two reportable business segments as primary segments; Home appliances and air solution division
and Home entertainment division. These segments have been identified and reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

The main products that each business segment manufactures and/or sells are as follows

Business segments:

- Home entertainment division: Televisions, Audio systems, DVD, Monitors, Security Camera, Hotel televisions, Personal
computers and Optical disk drive.

- Home appliances and air solution division: Refrigerator, Washing machine, Cooking and cleaning, Water purifier, Air
purifier, Compressors and motors, Ceiling fan and air conditioners.

In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108), information relating to segment is
as under.

(In Million)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Continuing business segments
Home appliances and air| Home entertainment Toal
Reportable segments solution division division
4 Z 4
Revenue from operations
-External 156,797 56,723 213,520
(150,307) (48,375) (198,682)
Other income 14 1 15
(16) (5) (21)
Total Revenue from operations 156,811 56,724 213,535
(150,323) (48,380) (198,703)
Expenses 140,068 49,844 189,912
(137,325) (40,349) (177,674)
Segment result 16,743 6,880 23,623
(12,998) (8,031) (21.,0289)
Unallocable income (Other income) 47
(217)
Unallocable expenses 5,003
(5,061)
Operating income 18,667
(16,185)
Interest expense 285
(226)
Interest income 1,989
(2,202)
Profit before tax 20,371
(18,161)
Tax expense 5,260
(4,712)
Profit for the year 15111
(13,449)
Note: Figures in brackets relate to the previous year
V7
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LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

34 Segment reporting (cont'd)

{In Million)
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Continuing business segments
Home appliances and air| Home entertainment L
Reportable segments solution division division
fd 4 4
Segment assets 39,032 12,284 51,316
(39,269) (11,319) (50,588)
Unallocable assets 33,668
(39,333)
Total assets 84,984
(89,9821)
Segment liabilities 23,405 9,166 32,57
(23,397) (8,515) (31,912)
Unallocable liabilities 14,691
(14,447)
Total liabilities 47,262
(46,359)
Other information
Shareholders funds 37,722
(43,562)
Capital expenditure (unallocable) 3,616
(5,423)
Depreciation and amortisation 3,644
(unallocable) (3,004)

Note: Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

34

(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

Segment reporting (cont'd)
Additional information required by IND AS 108

The Company has identified Geographic segment as secondary segment and the information on revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2024 is as follows:

{In Million)
Revenue
For the year ended
Geographic segment March 31, 2024
Z

Domestic 203,635
(189,138)

Africa 1,693
(1. 777)

Europe 1
(11

Asia (excluding India) 8,163
(7,728)

Others 28
(28)

Total Revenue from operations 213,520
(198,682)

Notes:

Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.

Administrative and corporate expenses, interest expense and interest income, unallocable other income and provision for tax
have not been allocated to reportable segments. Consequently, segment wise net profit has not been disclosed.

Unallocable other income has not been measured and reported segment wise as these components are not realistically
allocable and identifiable

Unallocable corporate expenses include expenses such as depreciation, employee remuneration and benefits, administrative
and other expenses which are not directly related to the specific segments.

Unallocable assets include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets,
Unallocable loans and advances and other current assets which are not directly related to the specific segments.

Capital expenditure pertains to additions made to property, plant and equipment during the year and movement in capital work in
progress during the year

7 (5[ KP-Tower
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LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

35

Discontinued operation

Discontinuation of Mobile Communications Division: - On April 05, 2021, LG Electronics Inc. (Holding company), announced its decision
to discontinue the mobile phones business by July 31, 2021. It, however, decided to continue to provide services support and software
updates for existing customers for a period as the Company deems fit.

Pursuant to the aforesaid decision, the management prepared a liquidation plan for the remaining inventories as on March 31, 2022
amounting to ¥ 86 Million (comprising manufactured and finished goods), factoring in the likely reduction in realisable value of its
merchandise goods, likely damages on cancellation of purchase orders placed with the vendors, likely demolition cost for the production
line, likely disposal cost of kits etc. and expected to incur an additional cost of approximately ¥ 40 Million. The Company has also

impaired the entire property, plant and equipment (PP&E) pertaining to the mobile communications division amounting to ¥ 26 Million
during the year ended March 31, 2022.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has liquidated inventories (comprising manufactured and finished goods)
amounting ¥ 54 Million and closing inventary amounting to 32 Million pertains to service parts inventory. All additional cost provided on
March 31, 2022 has been incurred by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

The financial performance pertaining to the mobile communications division are as follows:

(In Million
: For the year ended | For the year ended
RS March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
z 4

Revenue from operations (include other income) - 36
Expenses - 78
Loss before tax - (42)
Income tax expense - (11)
Loss after tax - (31)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities pertaining to the mobile communications division are as follows:

(In Million)
= As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
z T
Inventories - 32
Total assets - 32
The Net cash flows from mobile communications division are as follow:
{In Million)
; Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
4 (4
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow from operating activities B (14)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities - =
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - a
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow from discontinued operations - (14)
Earnings per share (Refer Note No 29)
Basic earnings per share for discontinued operations - (0.27)
Diluted earnings per share for discontinued operations - (0.27)
,»'/‘/- 3




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

36. Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

In terms of notification dated September 4, 2015 issued by the Government of India, the disclosure of payments due to
any supplier are as follows:

(In Million)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
i Z
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 3,094 3,751

accounting year.

(ii) Principal amount (excluding interest) paid during the year to any supplier - -
Fbeyond the appointed date.

(iii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the - -
accounting year.

(iv) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to -
the supplier beyond the appointed day.

(v) The amount of interest due and payable for the year. -

(vi) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the -
accounting year.

(vii) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - 5
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information collected by the Management.

37. Details on derivatives instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The following derivative positions are open as at March 31, 2024. These transactions have been undertaken to act as
economic hedges for the Company’s exposures to various risks in foreign exchange markets.

Forward exchange contracts which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes but for hedge purposes
required at the settlement date of certain payables and receivables.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company as at March 31, 2024:

(In Million)
Currency Amount Buy / Sell Cross Currency
usbD USD 24.47 equivalent to 2,041 Buy INR
(March 31, 2023 : USD 46.74 equivalent
to ¥ 3,841)
The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given
below:
[% in Million, Foreign currency (FC) in '000]
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Receivable/ Receivable/ Receivable/ Receivable/
articula (Payable) (Payable) (Payable) (Payable)
Z FC Z FC
i) Receivables in foreign currency
- Trade receivables 2,106 US § 25,243 2,672 US § 32,222
AED 0 AED 931
€0 € 41
- Other receivables 85 US $ 1,023 53 US § 648
- EEFC Alc 458 US § 5,488 345 US § 4,206
ii) Payables in foreign currency
- Trade payables (13,846) US $ (164,551) (14,715) US § (177,953)
¥ (63,964) ¥ (35,348)
(€ 949) (€ 784)
- Advances from customers (62) US § (742) (23) US § (283) iy




LG ELECTRONICS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

38,  Amounts remitted in foreign currency during the year on account of interim dividend:
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
4 L

Amount of interim dividend remitted in foreign currency (In Million) 20,929 24,888
Total number of non-resident shareholders 1 1
Total number of shares held by them on which dividend was due 113,128,726 113,128,726
Year to which the interim dividend relates 2023-24 2022-23

39 Government grants

a) Interms of the package of incentive 2001 as notified by the Government of Maharashtra, the Company received an
eligibility certificate for availing industrial promotion subsidy under the status of mega project involving expansion by
way of fixed capilal investment in the existing project at its factory at Ranjangaon, Pune. The Company is eligible for
the subsidy provided the additional fixed capital investments is not less than ¥2,500 Million made during period
commencing from August 11, 2005 to December 29, 2008. The industrial promotion subsidy is restricted to the lower
of 75% of the fixed capital investment and Value added tax (VAT) deposited with the Government of Maharashira on
the increased turnover arising from the additional fixed capital investment.

The Company has recorded claim aggregating to 2 & Million for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: NIL
Million).The outstanding balance of claims receivable as at March 31, 2024 aggregating to ZNIL Million (March 31,
2023: 13 Million) has been included in government grant recoverable in Note No. 7.

b) In the prior years, the Company was availing sales tax exemption in the State of Uttar Pradesh. Pursuant to an
amendment in the Uttar Pradesh Values Added Tax Act, 2008, the Company is required to deposit with the VAT
authorities, the amount of VAT collected from the dealers and thereafter file a refund claim for the VAT deposited.

The oulstanding balance of claims receivable as at March 31, 2024 aggregating to 2156 Million (March 31, 2023:
%156 Million ) has been included in government grant recoverable in Note No. 7.

The Company believes it has good case on merits for the recoverability of the same. Based on legal opinion obtained
by the Company, the Company has taken up matter with appropriate forum and is pending resolution.

c) In terms of the package scheme of incentive 2007 as notified by the Government of Maharashtra, the Company
received another eligibility certificate for availing industrial promotion subsidy under the status of mega project
involving expansion by way of fixed capital investment in the existing project at its factory at Ranjangaon, Pune. The
Company is eligible for the subsidy provided the additional fixed capital investments of the Company is not less than
25,000 Million made over a period of five years commencing from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2016. The industrial
promotion subsidy is restricted to the lower of 75% of the fixed capital investment and 50% of VAT deposited with the
Government of Maharashtra on the increased turnover calculated in proportion to the existing investment in factory at
Ranjangoan.

The Company has recorded claim aggregating to ¥ 457 Million for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023:
%443 Milion). The outstanding balance of claims receivable as at March 31, 2024 aggregating to 1,171 Million
(March 31, 2023: 2931 Million) has been included in government grant recoverable in Note No. 7.

d) In terms of the package scheme of incentive scheme 2012 as notified by the Government of India, the Company
received eligibility certificate for availing industrial promotion incentive under the status of modified special incentive
package scheme involving expansion by way of fixed capital investment in the existing project at its factory at
Ranjangaon, Pune and Surajpur, Noida. The Company is eligible for the incentive provided the additional fixed capital
investments of the Company is not less than 25% of existing fixed capital investment made over a period of 10
years, The industrial promotion incentive is restricted to the 25% of fixed capital investment.

The Company has recorded claim aggregating to €208 Million for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023:
2197 Million).

e) Export benefit recoverable includes Duty Drawback Scheme wherein relief of duties suffered on the inputs used in
the manufacture of products which are exported is allowed to the Company, the Merchandise Exports from India
Scheme (MEIS) under Foreign Trade Policy of India (FTP 2015-20) which provides incentive in the form of duty credit
scrip to the exporter to compensate for loss on payment of duties and, the Remission of Duties or Taxes on Export
Products Scheme (RoDTEP) allowed to neutralize duties and taxes suffered on the inputs used in the manufacture of
products which are exported in a freely convertible foreign currency.

The outstanding balance of claims receivable as at March 31, 2024 aggregating to 2113 Million (March 31, 2023:
2122 Million) has been included in government grant recoverable in Note No. 7.

40 Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system on maintenance of information and documents as required
by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and has documented transfer
pricing benchmarking study upto the year ended March 31, 2023. Since the law requires existence of such
information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the
documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the year ended
March 31, 2024 and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date as required under law. The
management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arms' length and the aforesaid legislation is not
expected to have any material impact on the financial statements.
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Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 1l

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
(i) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company does not have borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,

(iil) Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off Companies (Amount in ¥

Name of the struck off company

Nature of transactions
with struck off
company

Balance
outstanding as at
March 31, 2024

Relationship with
the struck off
company, If any,

Balance

outstanding as at

March 31, 2023

Relationship with
the struck off
company, if any,

(4] to be disclosed (%) to be disclosed

Gem Hvac Engineering Private Receivables against sale - None 754 None
Limited of goods/ rendering of

services
Super Tech Aircon Private Limited|Advance against sale of - None 16,605 None

goods/ rendering of

services
Mentor Graphics India Private Receivables against sale - None 1,742 None

Limited of goods/ rendering of

services

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has not invested in any other company during the current year or previous year and does not have any investment in any other
company as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. Hence, the compliance with respect to the number of layers prescribed under clause 87

of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the
Company.
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(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vil) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
A) The Company has not advanced ar loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a, Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(viii) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

{x) Valuation of Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

The Company has chosen cost model and not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the current or previous year.
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